
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Mark Ammel, Mayor 
Karen Moore, Mayor Pro Tem 

Ronald J. Beauchamp, Council Member 
Tyler DuBord, Council Member  

Todd Flath, Council Member 

 
CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

May 18, 2023 
 

James R. McNeil, City Manager 
Phil DeMay, City Clerk 

Laura J. Genovich, City Attorney 

 
City Council Chambers located at: City Hall – 410 Ludington Street – Room C101 – Escanaba, MI 49829 

The Council has adopted a policy to use a Consent Agenda, when appropriate. All items with an asterisk (*) are considered routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion 
of these items unless a Council Member or citizen so requests, in which event, the item will be removed from the General Order of Business and considered in its normal sequence on the Agenda. 
 

Regular Meeting 
Thursday, May 18, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. 

CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL 
INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
APPROVAL/CORRECTION(S) TO MINUTES – Regular Meeting – May 5, 2022          
APPROVAL/ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION(S) 
BRIEF PUBLIC COMMENT(S) 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
1. Public Hearing and Adoption – FY2023-24 Operating Budget.  

Explanation:  The Council has conducted four (4) public hearings and three (3) budget work sessions to set a proposed 
FY2023-24 operating budget.  This is the final public hearing on the FY2023-24 City operating budget and will establish 
a City millage rate of 17.442 mills. Administration is recommending Council approval of the FY2023-24 Operating 
Budget, Capital Improvement Plan and Master fee schedule.  
 

2. Public Hearing - Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act (OPRA) – Exemption – District No. 28 – 723 Ludington Street. 
Explanation: Lake Effect Distillery, LLC, owner of 723 Ludington Street, has requested to be enrolled in the Obsolete 
Properties Rehabilitation Act (OPRA) (PA 146, 2000) which allows for partial exemption of property taxes for a 
specified period of time so that certain types of property improvements can be made. The intent of the legislation is 
to encourage rehabilitation of underutilized or decaying commercial or commercial/residential properties in certain 
designated communities. Administration is recommending an OPRA exemption up to twelve (12) years beginning 
December 30, 2023, and ending December 30, 2035. 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 
NEW BUSINESS  

 
1. First Reading of Ordinance No. 1275, the Appropriations Ordinance, Including the Millage Rate of 17.442 Mills and 

Setting the Date of Thursday, May 25, 2023, for the Second Reading, Public Hearing, and Adoption. 
Explanation: Once the City Council approves the budget, the Council must approve a tax levy and authorize 
appropriations to implement the budget. Administration is recommending a special meeting of the Council for 
Thursday, May 25, 2023, at 9:00 a.m. be scheduled for the second reading, public hearing, and adoption of 
Appropriations Ordinance No. 1275. 
 

2. First Reading of Ordinance No. 1276, the Tax Levy Ordinance, and Setting the Date of Thursday, May 25, 2023, for 
the Second Reading, Public Hearing and Adoption. 
Explanation: Section 9, Chapter VIII, of the City Charter requires the City, by Ordinance, to levy taxes that may be 
necessary to meet the appropriations’ needs for the upcoming fiscal year budget. Administration is recommending a 



Agenda – May 18, 2023 
 

special meeting of the Council for Thursday, May 25, 2023, at 9:00 a.m. be scheduled for the second reading, public 
hearing, and adoption of Tax Levy Ordinance No. 1276. 
 

3. First Reading of Ordinance No. 1277, the Electric Rate Ordinance, and Setting the Date of Monday, June 5, 2023, for 
Second Reading, Public Hearing, and Adoption. 
Explanation: Annually, the City Council sets electric utility rates for the next fiscal year. Council is asked to consider 
this the first reading of Ordinance No. 1277 and to schedule the second reading and public hearing for June 5, 2023, 
at 9:00 a.m. 
 

4. First Reading of Ordinance No. 1278, the Water Rate Ordinance, and Setting the Date of Monday, June 5, 2023, for 
Second Reading, Public Hearing, and Adoption. 
Explanation: Annually, the City Council sets water utility rates for the next fiscal year. Council is asked to consider this 
the first reading of Ordinance No. 1278 and to schedule the second reading and public hearing for June 5, 2023, at 
9:00 a.m. 
 

5. First Reading of Ordinance No. 1279, the Wastewater Rate Ordinance, and Setting the Date of Monday, June 5, 
2023, for the Second Reading, Public Hearing, and Adoption. 
Explanation: Annually, the City Council sets wastewater utility rates for the next fiscal year. Council is asked to consider 
this the first reading of Ordinance No. 1279 and to schedule the second reading and public hearing for June 5, 2023, 
at 9:00 a.m. 
 

6. First Reading of Ordinance No. 1280, the Solid Waste Ordinance, and Setting the Date of Monday, June 5, 2023, for 
the Second Reading, Public Hearing, and Adoption.  
Explanation: Annually, the City Council sets solid waste rates for the next fiscal year. Council is asked to consider this 
the first reading of Ordinance No. 1280 and to schedule the second reading and public hearing for June 5, 2023, at 
9:00 a.m. 
 

7. Approval – Use of Public Space – Ludington Park and Ludington Street – Annual Krusin Klassic Car Fun Run – 
Administration. 
Explanation: The Krusin Klassic Car Club is requesting City Council approval to use Ludington Park and Ludington Street 
on June 2, 2023, from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m., for their annual "Krusin Klassics Fun Run". Administration is 
recommending approval of the request contingent upon the following: 1) Proper insurance was provided naming the 
City of Escanaba as an additional insured, and 2) event sponsors provide all labor material and clean up at the 
conclusion of the event. 
 

8. Approval – Property and Liability Insurance Renewal – City Controller. 
Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council approval of the property and liability insurance policy with the 
Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority for July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024. 
 

9. Approval – Request to Purchase City Property – 3110 5th Avenue South – Manager. 
Explanation: Administration will present a request to purchase city property at 3110 5th Avenue South for the purpose 
of the construction of a single-family home. Prices are as follows: Bid $20,000, Ask $20,500, Private Appraisal $19,500, 
Assessor $20,500. 
 

10. Approval – WWTP Digester Bio-Solids Removal & Hauling – 2023 – Wastewater Department. 
Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council approval to retain professional services from Synagro of 435 
Williams Court, Suite 100, Baltimore, Maryland for the digester bio-solids cleaning and hauling in an amount not to 
exceed $200,000.00, which includes $3,775.00 in contingencies. 
 
 
 
 



Agenda – May 18, 2023 
 
11. Approval – Drinking Water System Asset Management Plan (DWAM) – Water Department. 

Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council approval to retain C2AE from Escanaba, MI, for professional 
services with regard to the City of Escanaba Water Plant Drinking Water System Asset Management Plan in an amount 
not to exceed $152,460.00. 
 

APPOINTMENTS          
BOARD, COMMISSION, AND COMMITTEE REPORTS      
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT        
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
12. Closed Session – Discussion of Labor Contracts – HR Director/Treasurer. 

Explanation: Administration is requesting Council go into a closed session to consider material exempt from discussion 
or disclosure by statute under MCL 15.268(c), identified as negotiation of a collective bargaining agreement(s). 

       
ADJOURNMENT          

 
Respectfully Submitted,  

 
 
James R. McNeil 
City Manager  



 OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF ESCANABA, MICHIGAN 
Regular Council Meeting 
Thursday, May 4, 2023 

 
The meeting was called to order by the Honorable Mayor Mark Ammel at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers of City Hall located at 410 Ludington Street. 
 
Present: Mayor Mark Ammel, Council Members, Ronald J. Beauchamp, Tyler 

DuBord, Todd Flath, and Karen Moore 
 
Absent: None 
 
Also Present: City Manager James R. McNeil, City Clerk Phil DeMay, Department Heads, 

media, and members of the public. 
 

City Clerk DeMay led Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Flath moved, DuBord seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve Regular 
Meeting minutes from April 20, 2023, as submitted. 
 

 
ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 

Flath moved, Beauchamp seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve the City 
Council Agenda as submitted. 

 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION  
 

Council Member Moore declared a conflict of interest with New Business item number 
two because she is the Executive Chair of Enhance Escanaba. 
 

 
BRIEF PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

• Karen Caswell – discussed library budget. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
PH-1 Public Hearing - Proposed 2023-24 Fiscal Year Budget. 
 

City Council conducted the fourth public hearing and scheduled the final public hearing 
and approval of the 2023-24 City budget for May 18, 2023. 
 
This being a public hearing, Mayor Ammel asked for public comment. 
 
Hearing no public comment, Mayor Ammel then closed the public hearing. 
 



City Council Minutes  
May 4, 2023 – cont. 
 

2 
 

PH-1 Beauchamp moved, DuBord seconded, to set May 18, 2023, as the final public 
hearing and approval of the 2023-24 City budget. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Beauchamp, DuBord, Moore, Flath, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 

 
PH-2 Public Hearing - Obsolete Properties Rehabilitation District No. 28 - 723 
Ludington Street – Assessor. 
 

The Obsolete Properties Rehabilitation Act (PA 146 of 2000) allows partial exemption 
of property taxes for a specified period for certain types of property improvements 
within a specified area. The intent of the legislation is to encourage rehabilitation of 
underutilized or decaying commercial or commercial/residential properties in certain 
designated communities such as Escanaba. The first step in the OPRA process was 
the establishment of a district consisting of one or more eligible properties. In 
accordance with program requirements, the owner of 723 Ludington Street has 
submitted a request that the City establish an OPRA District, which if approved, would 
allow for an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation exemption in the future. 
 
This being a public hearing, Mayor Ammel asked for public comment. 
 
Ryan Brayak – discussed their consideration of Obsolete Properties Rehabilitation.  
 
Hearing no further public comment, Mayor Ammel then closed the public hearing. 
 
“PH-2 By Council Member DuBord, seconded by Council Member Flath: 
 

Resolution 23-11 
 

CITY OF ESCANABA, DELTA COUNTY, MICHIGAN 
RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH 

OBSOLETE PROPERTY REHABILITATION (OPRA) DISTRICT NO. 28 
 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to PA 146 of 2000, the City of Escanaba has the authority to 
establish “Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Districts” within the City of Escanaba; and 
 
WHEREAS, Lake Effect Distillery, LLC has filed a written request with the clerk of the 
City of Escanaba requesting the establishment of the Obsolete Property Rehabilitation 
District for an area in the vicinity of 723 Ludington Street located in the City of 
Escanaba hereinafter described; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Escanaba determined that the district meets 
the requirements set forth in section 3(1) of PA 146 of 2000; and 



City Council Minutes  
May 4, 2023 – cont. 
 

3 
 

WHEREAS, written notice has been given by mail to all owners of real property located 
within the proposed district and to the public by newspaper advertisement in the Daily 
Press and/or by public posting of the hearing on the establishment of the proposed 
district; and 
 
WHEREAS, on May 4, 2023, a public hearing was held and all residents and 
taxpayers of the City of Escanaba were afforded an opportunity to be heard thereon; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council deems it to be in the public interest of the City of 
Escanaba to establish the Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District as proposed. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Escanaba 
that the following described parcel(s) of land situated in the City of Escanaba, Delta 
County, and State of Michigan, to wit: 
 
Parcel #051-010-2929-306-001, 051-010-2929-306-003, 051-010-2929-306-004; 
LOTS 4, 5, 6, AND THE NORTH 67.5 FEET OF LOTS 7 AND 8 OF BLOCK 40 OF 
THE ORIGINAL PLAT 
 
be and here is established as an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District pursuant to 
the provisions of PA 146 of 2000 to be known as Obsolete Property Rehabilitation 
District No. 28. 
 
Ayes: DuBord, Flath, Moore, Beauchamp, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.” 
 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 
UB-1 Condemnation Located at 1620 9th Avenue South – Code Enforcement. 
 

At the January 19, 2023, City Council meeting, the City Council postponed the 
condemnation of 1620 Avenue South until May. Administration recommended City 
Council discontinue the condemnation process. 
 
UB-1 DuBord moved, Moore seconded, to discontinue the condemnation process of 
1620 Avenue South. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 

 

Ayes: DuBord, Moore, Beauchamp, Flath, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 

 

MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 



City Council Minutes  
May 4, 2023 – cont. 
 

4 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
NB-1 Setting Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Public Hearing – May 18, 
2023 – 723 Ludington Street – District No. 28 – Assessor. 
 

Lake Effect Distillery, LLC, owner of 723 Ludington Street, has requested to be 
enrolled in the Obsolete Properties Rehabilitation Act (OPRA) (PA 146, 2000) which 
allows for partial exemption of property taxes for a specified period of time so that 
certain types of property improvements can be made. The intent of the legislation is 
to encourage rehabilitation of underutilized or decaying commercial or 
commercial/residential properties in certain designated communities. Administration 
recommended Council set a public hearing date for May 18, 2023, so there is public 
understanding of the project. 
 
NB-1 DuBord moved, Beauchamp seconded, to set a public hearing date for May 18, 
2023, for the OPRA District No. 28 – 723 Ludington Street exemption so there is a 
public understanding of the project. 

 

Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 

Ayes: DuBord, Beauchamp, Moore, Flath, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 

 

MOTION CARRIED. 
 

 
NB-2 Approval – Request to Develop and Maintain Garden on City Property – 
Manager. 
 

Enhance Escanaba has requested City Council authorization to build and maintain a 
garden on Sand Point. A proposed agreement and sketch were included in the agenda 
packet. 
 
NB-2 DuBord moved, Flath seconded, to postpone the request from Enhance 
Escanaba to build and maintain a garden on Sand Point. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 

 

Ayes: DuBord, Flath, Beauchamp, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
Abstain: Moore 

 

MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 
APPOINTMENT(S) TO CITY BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, AND COMMITTEES  

 
Manager McNeil, with Council Consensus made the following reappointments: 
 



City Council Minutes  
May 4, 2023 – cont. 
 

5 
 

Lynn Soderberg reappointed to the Board of Library Trustees, expiring June 1, 
2026; 

 
David Bleau reappointed to the Harbor Advisory Committee, expiring June 1, 2026; 

 
Crystal Porior reappointed to the Harbor Advisory Committee, expiring June 1, 
2026; 

 
Shirley Gollach reappointed to the Recreation Advisory Board, expiring June 1, 
2026. 

 
 
Council made the following reappointment: 

 
Michael Harris reappointed to the Planning  Commission, expiring June 1, 2026; 

 
Mark Sadowski reappointed to the Planning Commission, expiring June 1, 2026. 
 

 
BOARD, COMMISSION, AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  
  

Council Members reviewed City Board and Commission meetings each attended 
since the last City Council Meeting. 
 
 

GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

• May the 4th be with you! 

• Esky Clean up next week! 

• On May 14th the 1st crew ship will arrive. 
 

 
Hearing no further public comment, Flath moved, the Council adjourned at 7:39 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Phil DeMay     Approved: ____________________ 
City Clerk              Mark Ammel, Mayor 













HARD COSTS COSTS
PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE

SIDEWALKS TJ MASONRY $17,520.00
CURBS TJ MASONRY $2,900.00
CITY OF ESCANABA NEW TRANSFORMERS AND SERVICE CITY OF ESCANABA $40,000.00

SUBTOTAL $60,420.00

SITE IMPROVEMENTS
OUTDOOR CONCRETE PARKING TJ MASONRY $53,600.00
CONCRETE DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE TJ MASONRY $14,000.00
GRAVEL GRAVEL FOR OUTDOOR SEATING BICHLER $4,000.00
GARDEN PLANTERS AND SEATING PLANTERS AND SEATING ELEMENTS ROCK ELEMENTS $30,000.00
BOLLARDS TJ MASONRY $750.00
ASHPALT BLACKTOP SEALING AND PAINTING UNITED ASPHALT $8,000.00

SUBTOTAL $110,350.00

DEMOLITION
ASBESTOS REMOVAL ASBESTOS REMOVAL PEARSONS $47,699.00
BUILDING DEMOLITION PLASTER, BLOCK, AND CONCRETE ROCK ELEMENTS $175,000.00

SUBTOTAL $222,699.00

EARTH WORK 
EXCAVATION DIG/REMOVE/REPLACE EARTH JOHN RIAN $25,000.00
LABOR WORKERS EXCAVATION/COMPACTION ROCK ELEMENTS $6,400.00
DEWATERING DEWATER ELEVATOR PIT DEGRAND $8,500.00

SUBTOTAL $39,900.00

SITE UTILITIES
WATER SUPPLY TO BUILDING MATERIALS FERGUSON WATERWORKS $4,962.00
WATER SUPPLY TO BUILDING LABOR ROCK ELEMENTS $3,000.00
INSULATE WATER LINES 2" RIGID INSULATION MATERIAL MENARDS $1,700.00

SUBTOTAL $9,662.00

STRUCTURES
BUILDING CONCRETE/MASONRY

ALL BUILDING CONCRETE/MASONRY TJ MASONRY $45,880.00
STONE SILLS AND CORNICE BEUCHEL $3,882.00
LABOR CORNICE TJ MASONRY $500.00
CRANE RENTAL CRANE TO SET ELEVATOR PIT ROY NESS $600.00
CONCRETE PUMPER FROM ARROW ARROW $2,000.00

SUBTOTAL $52,862.00

CARPENTRY
METAL FRAMING KARKI $115,000.00
STRUCTURAL STEEL WORK MATERIALS UP FAB $105,500.00
STRUCTURAL STEEL WORK LABOR INSTALL ROCK ELEMENTS $12,000.00

SUBTOTAL $232,500.00

ROOFING
ROOFING INDEPENDENT ROOFING $54,400.00
WALL INSULATION SPRAY FOAM K2 INSULATION $41,954.00

SUBTOTAL $96,354.00

DOORS/WINDOWS/GLASS
INTERIOR HOLLOW METAL DOORS MATERIALS/LABOR WINDOW STORE $60,040.00
EXTERIOR AND INTERIOR GARAGE DOOR MATERIALS/LABOR DELTA DOOR $22,651.00
FIRE WALL WINDOWS MATERIALS/LABOR WINDOW STORE $169,700.00
EXTERIOR WINDOWS AND DOORS MATERIALS/LABOR JEFFS GLASS $186,000.00

SUBTOTAL $438,391.00

DRYWALL/ACCOUSTICAL
DRYWALL KARKI DRWYALL $130,000.00
ACOUSTIC CEILING PANEL IN PRODUCTION/TASTING BAUX ACOUSTIC CEILING PANEL IM ACCOUSTICS $32,423.00
TASTING ROOM WALL NICHE ACOUSTIC PANELS PLYBOO FUTURA SOUND PANELS PLYBOO $7,500.00



TASTING ROOM WALL LINEAR ACOUSTIC PANELS PLYBOO LINEAR SOUND PANELS PLYBOO $4,500.00
SUBTOTAL $174,423.00

FLOORING
FLOORING TILE/CARPET/MARMOLEUM HEYNSSENS SELINS $95,942.00
EPOXY FLOOR FINISHES STORAGE/KITCHEN/PRODUCTION TERRAZZO RESTORATIONS $26,880.00
TERRAZZO STAIR RESTORATION REFINISH TERRAZZO STAIRS AND LANDING TERRAZZO RESTORATIONS $8,531.00

SUBTOTAL $131,353.00

CABINETS/COUNTERTOPS/APPLIANCES
CABINETRY FOR KITCHENS KITCHEN CABINETRY CLICK CABINETS $8,294.00
KITCHEN APPLIANCES LOWES $3,000.00
CABINETS BAR COFEE CABINETS BAR COFFEE NORTH OAK $30,000.00
WINDOW SILLS AND BAR/KITCHEN COUNTERS QUARTZ SILLS AND COUNTERTOPS STONE REFLECTIONS $36,727.00

SUBTOTAL $78,021.00

PAINTING/DECORATING
PAINTING PAINT WALLS AND CEILING KARKI DRYWALL $54,000.00
BLINDS BLINDS FOR ALL WINDOWS SVILANDS $20,000.00

SUBTOTAL $74,000.00

PLUMBING/ELEC/FIRE PROTECTION
PLUMBING BERGER AND KING $900,000.00
FULL BUILDING FIRE SUPPRESSION SUPPLY AND INSTALL EXCEL FIRE PROTECTION $162,084.00
FIRE ALARM SYSTEM SUPPLY AND INSTALL LAMMI FIRE ALARMS $33,000.00
ETHANOL AND CO2 ALARMS SUPPLY DUNCAN $15,245.00
ELECTRICAL FOR BUILDING INSTALL ELECTRIC FOR BUILDING/NO EXT. CAR CHARGERS NK ELECTRIC $459,000.00
SOLAR ON ROOFS SUPPLY AND INSTALL 20KW UP SUSTAINABLE SOLAR $50,000.00
SECURITY SYSTEM SUPPLY AND INSTALL SUPERIOR LOCK $22,500.00
BUILDING WATER FILTRATION ENTIRE BUILDING CARBON FILTRATION SYSTEM AND PUMPS EVOQUA $17,918.00

SUBTOTAL $1,659,747.00

HVAC
MECHANICAL SUPPLY AND INSTALL BERGER AND KING $600,000.00
GEOTHERMAL WELLS ONE 12" WELL SYSTEM DARCY SOLUTIONS $621,800.00

SUBTOTAL $1,221,800.00

BUILDER OVERHEAD
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT ROCK ELEMENTS $70,000.00

PERMIT/TAP FEES/BOND/COST CERTIFICATION
PERMITS/BOND/COST CERTIFICATION ROCK ELEMENTS $15,000.00

OTHER  COSTS
MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT

BAR EQUIPMENT $29,771.00
COFFEE EQUIPMENT ALL COFFEE EQUIPMENT VELODROME $22,624.00

DISTILLERY EQUIPMENT
NEW POT STILL SUPPLY AND INSTALL BRIDGEWORKS $173,000.00
PROCESS PIPING SUPPLY AND INSTALL BERGER AND KING $40,000.00
FLOOR SCALE SUPPLY AND INSTALL GLOBAL INDUSTRIAL $1,800.00
HYDRATOR HYDRATOR FOR MASH TUN QTS $1,200.00
2 PROOFING TANKS 2 PROOFING TANKS GLACIER TANKS $25,125.00
ALCOHOL STORAGE TANKS 550 GALLON STORAGE TANKS QTY 2 CARY COMPANY $11,000.00
AIR COMPRESSOR QUNICY 25HP V.S. AIR COMPRESSOR W/ DRYER & TANK ZORN $27,553.00
WASTE WATER TREATMENT SYSTEM PRESS, ENZYME DIGESTER, RO SYS, TANKS SOLUBLE SOLUTIONS $75,000.00
GLUCOSE STORAGE TANK SUPPLY CRAWFORD $17,500.00
PNEUMATIC PIPING MATERIAL UNIPIPE $15,000.00
CIP CART CLEANING CART FOR TANKS WITH HEATER BREWNATION $18,834.00
CHILLERS G&D 25T-2 AND 27H CHILLERS FOR FERMENTERS G&D CHILLERS $102,287.00
FERMENTATION TANKS 5 FERMENTATION TANKS GLACIER $86,822.00



FEREMENTATION PIPING AND CONTROLS GLACIER GLACIER $8,000.00
STAIRS AND CATWALKS PREMADE ROLLING STAIRS GRAINGER $4,500.00

SUBTOTAL $660,016.00

FURNITURE AND FIXTURES
TASTING ROOM AND OFFICE FURNITURE VARIOUS $40,000.00

ARCHITECTURAL AND ENGINEERING
STUDIO RAD $41,500.00
RHOADES ENGINEERING $38,300.00
COLEMAN ENGINEERING $20,000.00
AKRO ENGINEERING $15,500.00
BOOZEWERKS ENGINEERING $78,280.00

SUBTOTAL $193,580.00
ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES

TRIMEDIA PHASE 1&2 SITE ASSESSMENT TRIMEDIA $12,250.00

TOTAL $5,513,328.00





*** Information herein deemed reliable but not guaranteed***

DeltaCounty:City of EscanabaJurisdiction: Printed onParcel Number: 051-010-2929-306-001

53,400S53,40014,80038,6002020

54,147C56,1008,90047,2002021

44,600S44,60010,30034,3002022

25,400S25,4009,70015,7002023

Taxable
Value

Tribunal/
Other

Board of
Review

Assessed
Value

Building
Value

Land
Value

Year

Land Improvement Cost Estimates
Description                                 Rate        Size % Good     Cash Value
D/W/P: Asphalt Paving                       2.69        8907      1            240
Commercial Local Cost Land Improvements
Description                       Rate        Size % Good Arch Mult     Cash Value
  WATER&SEWER                 2,500.00           1     84       100          2,100
                Total Estimated Land Improvements True Cash Value =          2,340

                               * Factors *            100.23 X140 & 67.5X100
Description   Frontage  Depth  Front  Depth  Rate %Adj. Reason             Value
E LUDINGTON     100.23 140.00 1.0000 1.0000   275  100                    27,563
E LUDINGTON      67.50 100.00 1.0000 0.8452   275   25  FRONTAGE ON SIDE STREET    3,922
  168 Actual Front Feet, 0.48 Total Acres    Total Est. Land Value =      31,485

Land Value Estimates for Land Table 20.COM 1

CM  10/31/2019 Picture Up
JM  09/27/2019 Data Enter
KD  03/19/2019 Review App

Who     When       What

Level
Rolling
Low
High
Landscaped
Swamp
Wooded
Pond
Waterfront
Ravine
Wetland
Flood Plain

X
 
 
X
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Topography of 
Site

Dirt Road
Gravel Road
Paved Road
Storm Sewer
Sidewalk
Water
Sewer
Electric
Gas
Curb
Street Lights
Standard Utilities
Underground Utils.

 
 
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
 
 

Public
Improvements

Vacant ImprovedX

The Equalizer.  Copyright (c) 1999 - 2009.
Licensed To: City of Escanaba, County of
Delta, Michigan

Comments/Influences

LOTS 5 & 6 & W 0.23 FT OF LOT 4 & N 67.5
FT OF LOTS 7 & 8 OF BLK 40 OF THE
ORIGINAL PLAT

Tax Description

LAKE EFFECT DISTILLERY LLC
5413 J RD
ESCANABA MI 49829-9756

Owner's Name/Address

723 LUDINGTON ST

Property Address

2023 Est TCV 50,870 TCV/TFA: 4.47

Map #: 

P.R.E.   0%  

School: ESCANABA AREA PUBLIC SCHOOLS

StatusNumberDateBuilding Permit(s)Zoning: E3 CENTCOMClass: COMMERCIAL-IMPROVED

0.0DEED398-15903-ARM'S LENGTHWD03/01/19930NORTHERN MICHIGAN BANK & TRESCANABA NATIONAL BANK

100.0PROPERTY TRANSFER AFFIDAVIT1217/37019-MULTI PARCEL ARM'S LENGTHWD08/03/201830,000JL KING PROPERTIES LLCFIRST BANK UPPER MICHIGAN

100.0PROPERTY TRANSFER AFFIDAVIT1330/35219-MULTI PARCEL ARM'S LENGTHWD01/05/2021130,000LAKE EFFECT DISTILLERY LLCJL KING PROPERTIES LLC

Prcnt.
Trans.

Verified
By

Liber
& Page

Terms of SaleInst.
Type

Sale
Date

Sale
Price

GranteeGrantor

04/11/2023



 X Concrete, Reinforced, Formed, 12"

Bsmnt Insul. Thickness 

 (40) Exterior Wall:

 (39) Miscellaneous:

 (14) Roof Cover:
 X Built-Up Composite

 (13) Roof Structure:   Slope=0 
 X Wood Dome and Deck

Incandescent
Fluorescent
Mercury
Sodium Vapor
Transformer

 
X
 
 
 

Flex Conduit
Rigid Conduit
Armored Cable
Non-Metalic
Bus Duct

 
 
 
 
 

Few
Average
Many
Unfinished
Typical

 
X
 
 
 

Few
Average
Many
Unfinished
Typical

X
 
 
 
 

Fixtures:Outlets:

 (11) Electric and Lighting:
 X Typical, Banks, Class C,D,S

 X Package Heating/Cooling, Short Ducts

Hand Fired
Boiler

 
 

Coal
Stoker

 
 

Gas
Oil

X
 

 (10) Heating and Cooling:

 (9) Sprinklers:

 X Typical, Banks, Central Offices

Urinals
Wash Bowls
Water Heaters
Wash Fountains
Water Softeners

2
3
 
 
 

Total Fixtures
3-Piece Baths
2-Piece Baths
Shower Stalls
Toilets

 
 
 
 
5

Few
None

 
 

Average
Typical

 
 

Many
Above Ave.

 
 

 (8) Plumbing:

 (7) Interior:
 X Frame, Banks, Central Offices, C,D & S

 (6) Ceiling:
 X Plaster on Lath, Standard

 (5) Floor Cover:
 X Carpet and Pad
 X Vinyl Tile

 (4) Floor Structure:
 X Wood Joists and Sheathing

 (3) Frame:
 X Bearing Walls, Masonry supports only

 X Class C, Bearing Walls

Block Brick/Stone Poured Conc.X

Footings  (2) Foundation:

 (1) Excavation/Site Prep:
 X Excavation (in cubic feet)

<<<<<                     Calculator Cost Computations                     >>>>>
  Class: C    Quality: Average
Stories: 3    Story Height: 10        Perimeter: 280
Overall Building Height: 32
 
Base Rate for Upper Floors = 123.34
Storage Basement Basement, Base Rate for Basement = 39.19
   (Basement Fireproofing Rate = 0.00)
 
(10) Heating system: Forced Air Furnace    Cost/SqFt: 16.39   100%
 Bsmnt Heating system: No Heating or Cooling  Cost/SqFt:  0.00
Adjusted Square Foot Cost for Upper Floors = 139.73
Adjusted Square Foot Cost for Basement = 39.19
 
Total Floor Area: 11,392              Base Cost New of Upper Floors =  1,591,805
Basement Area: 3,800                      Base Cost New of Basement =    148,922
 
                                      Reproduction/Replacement Cost =  1,740,727
Eff.Age:58   Phy.%Good/Abnr.Phy./Func./Econ./Overall %Good: 40 /20 /20 /100/1.6
                                             Total Depreciated Cost =     27,852
 
ECF (20 - COM 1, 25 - COM 2, 30 - IND/COM, 10 - ACREAGE)0.612 => TCV of Bldg:  1  =      17,045
    Replacement Cost/Floor Area= 152.80      Est. TCV/Floor Area= 1.50

  **  **  Calculator Cost Data  **  **
Quality: Average  
Heat#1: Forced Air Furnace            100%
Heat#2: Forced Air Furnace            0%
Ave. SqFt/Story: 3797
Ave. Perimeter: 280
Has Elevators:
 
         *** Basement Info ***
Area: 3800
Perimeter:
Type: Storage Basement
Heat: No Heating or Cooling
 
          * Mezzanine Info *
Area #1:
Type #1: Office             (No Rates)
Area #2:
Type #2: Office             (No Rates)
 
          * Sprinkler Info *
Area:
Type: Average

Low Ave.XAbove Ave. High 

Construction Cost

Comments:
HISTORICAL BUILDING -
FUNCTIONAL DUE TO
REMODEL COST AND 2015
MBOR DECISION.

Overall Bldg
Height

32

Year Built
Remodeled

1917
1973

Depr. Table    : 2%
Effective Age  : 58
Physical %Good: 40
Func. %Good   : 20
Economic %Good: 100

Class: C
Floor Area: 11,392
Gross Bldg Area: 11,392
Stories Above Grd: 3
Average Sty Hght : 10
Bsmnt Wall Hght  : 8

Desc. of Bldg/Section: NORTHERN MI BANK
Calculator Occupancy: Office Buildings

*** Information herein deemed reliable but not guaranteed***

Commercial/Industrial Building/Section 1 of 1 Printed onParcel Number: 051-010-2929-306-001 04/11/2023



*** Information herein deemed reliable but not guaranteed***

DeltaCounty:City of EscanabaJurisdiction: Printed onParcel Number: 051-010-2929-306-003

8,700S8,7001,0007,7002020

8,600S8,6009007,7002021

8,700S8,7001,0007,7002022

4,600S4,6001,1003,5002023

Taxable
Value

Tribunal/
Other

Board of
Review

Assessed
Value

Building
Value

Land
Value

Year

Land Improvement Cost Estimates
Description                                 Rate        Size % Good     Cash Value
D/W/P: Asphalt Paving                       2.60        3500     23          2,093
                Total Estimated Land Improvements True Cash Value =          2,093

                               * Factors *            25.6 X 140
Description   Frontage  Depth  Front  Depth  Rate %Adj. Reason             Value
E LUDINGTON      25.60 140.00 1.0000 1.0000   275  100                     7,040
   26 Actual Front Feet, 0.08 Total Acres    Total Est. Land Value =       7,040

Land Value Estimates for Land Table 20.COM 1

TW  08/14/2018 Data Enter
DRN 11/13/2014 Data Enter
KD  06/06/2011 Inspected

Who     When       What

Level
Rolling
Low
High
Landscaped
Swamp
Wooded
Pond
Waterfront
Ravine
Wetland
Flood Plain

X
 
 
X
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Topography of 
Site

Dirt Road
Gravel Road
Paved Road
Storm Sewer
Sidewalk
Water
Sewer
Electric
Gas
Curb
Street Lights
Standard Utilities
Underground Utils.

 
 
X
X
 
X
X
X
X
X
 
 
 

Public
Improvements

VacantXImproved 

The Equalizer.  Copyright (c) 1999 - 2009.
Licensed To: City of Escanaba, County of
Delta, Michigan

Comments/Influences

W 0.85 FT OF E 1/2 OF LOT 4 & W 1/2 OF
LOT 4 EXC W 0.23 FT OF BLK 40 OF THE
ORIGINAL PLAT

Tax Description

LAKE EFFECT DISTILLERY LLC
5413 J RD
ESCANABA MI 49829-9756

Owner's Name/Address

723 LUDINGTON ST

Property Address

2023 Est TCV 9,133

Map #: 

P.R.E.   0%  

COMPLETE540210/18/1996COMMERCIALSchool: ESCANABA AREA PUBLIC SCHOOLS

StatusNumberDateBuilding Permit(s)Zoning: E3 CENTCOMClass: COMMERCIAL-VACANT

0.0DEED294/23110-FORECLOSUREWD05/16/19864,084NORTHERN MICHIGAN BANK & TR

100.0PROPERTY TRANSFER AFFIDAVIT1217/37019-MULTI PARCEL ARM'S LENGTHWD08/03/201830,000JL KING PROPERTIES LLCFIRST BANK UPPER MICHIGAN

100.0PROPERTY TRANSFER AFFIDAVIT1330/35220-MULTI PARCEL SALE REFWD01/05/2021130,000LAKE EFFECT DISTILLERY LLCJL KING PROPERTIES LLC

Prcnt.
Trans.

Verified
By

Liber
& Page

Terms of SaleInst.
Type

Sale
Date

Sale
Price

GranteeGrantor

04/11/2023



*** Information herein deemed reliable but not guaranteed***

DeltaCounty:City of EscanabaJurisdiction: Printed onParcel Number: 051-010-2929-306-004

8,200S8,2001,0007,2002020

8,200S8,2001,0007,2002021

8,200S8,2001,0007,2002022

4,300S4,3001,0003,3002023

Taxable
Value

Tribunal/
Other

Board of
Review

Assessed
Value

Building
Value

Land
Value

Year

Land Improvement Cost Estimates
Description                                 Rate        Size % Good     Cash Value
D/W/P: Asphalt Paving                       2.60        3374     23          2,018
                Total Estimated Land Improvements True Cash Value =          2,018

                               * Factors *            24.1 X 140
Description   Frontage  Depth  Front  Depth  Rate %Adj. Reason             Value
E LUDINGTON      24.10 140.00 1.0000 1.0000   275  100                     6,628
   24 Actual Front Feet, 0.08 Total Acres    Total Est. Land Value =       6,628

Land Value Estimates for Land Table 20.COM 1

TW  08/14/2018 Data Enter
DRN 09/25/2015 Data Enter
DRN 11/13/2014 Data Enter

Who     When       What

Level
Rolling
Low
High
Landscaped
Swamp
Wooded
Pond
Waterfront
Ravine
Wetland
Flood Plain

X
 
 
X
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Topography of 
Site

Dirt Road
Gravel Road
Paved Road
Storm Sewer
Sidewalk
Water
Sewer
Electric
Gas
Curb
Street Lights
Standard Utilities
Underground Utils.

 
 
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
 
 

Public
Improvements

VacantXImproved 

The Equalizer.  Copyright (c) 1999 - 2009.
Licensed To: City of Escanaba, County of
Delta, Michigan

Comments/Influences

E 1/2 OF LOT 4 EXC W 0.85 FT OF BLK 40 OF
THE ORIGINAL PLAT

Tax Description

LAKE EFFECT DISTILLERY LLC
5413 J RD
ESCANABA MI 49829-9756

Owner's Name/Address

723 LUDINGTON ST

Property Address

2023 Est TCV 8,646

Map #: 

P.R.E.   0%  

School: ESCANABA AREA PUBLIC SCHOOLS

StatusNumberDateBuilding Permit(s)Zoning: E3 CENTCOMClass: COMMERCIAL-VACANT

0.0BUYER/SELLER1152/11726-PARTIAL INTERESTQC01/14/20000NORTHERN MICHIGAN BANK & TRNORTHERN MICHIGAN BANK

100.0PROPERTY TRANSFER AFFIDAVIT1217/37019-MULTI PARCEL ARM'S LENGTHWD08/03/201830,000JL KING PROPERTIES LLCFIRST BANK UPPER MICHIGAN

100.0PROPERTY TRANSFER AFFIDAVIT1330/35220-MULTI PARCEL SALE REFWD01/05/2021130,000LAKE EFFECT DISTILLERY LLCJL KING PROPERTIES LLC

Prcnt.
Trans.

Verified
By

Liber
& Page

Terms of SaleInst.
Type

Sale
Date

Sale
Price

GranteeGrantor

04/11/2023



RESOLUTION 23-12 
 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AN APPLICATION FOR 
OBSOLETE PROPERTY REHABILITATION EXEMPTION FOR 

LAKE EFFECT DISTILLERY, LLC NO. 28 
 
Whereas, Pursuant to P.A. 146 of 2000, the City of Escanaba is a Qualified Local 

Governmental Unit eligible to establish one or more Obsolete Property 
Rehabilitation Districts; and 

 
Whereas, The City of Escanaba Legally established Obsolete Properties Rehabilitation 

District No. 28 on May 4, 2023, pursuant to a public hearing held on that date; and 
 
Whereas, The taxable value of this exemption plus the aggregate taxable value of property 

already exempt under PA 146 of 2000 and under PA 198 of 1974 does not exceed 
5% of the total taxable value of the City of Escanaba; and   

 
Whereas, The applicant is not delinquent in any taxes related to the facility; and  
 
Whereas, The applicant has provided all required items to the City of Escanaba; and 
 
Whereas, The application is for obsolete property as defined in Sec. 2(h) of Public Act 146 

of 2000; and 
 
Whereas, Rehabilitation of this facility as covered by this exemption had not begun prior to 

May 4, 2023, the date the district was established; and 
 
Whereas,  The application relates to a rehabilitation program that, when completed, 

constitutes a rehabilitated facility within the meaning of PA 146 of 2000, situated 
within an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District; and 

 
Whereas,   Completion of the rehabilitated facility is calculated to, and will, at the time of 

issuance of the certificate, have the reasonable likelihood to increase commercial 
activity, to create employment, to retain employment, and to revitalize an urban 
area; and 

 
Whereas, The rehabilitation includes improvements aggregating 10% or more of the true 

cash value of the property at commencement of the rehabilitation as provided by 
Sec. 2(l) of PA 146 of 2000; and 

 
Whereas,  The application was approved at a public hearing on May 18, 2023, provided by 

Sec. 4(2) of PA 146 of 2000, allowing a period of thirty-seven (37) months for 
completion of the rehabilitation;  

 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved by the City Council of the City of Escanaba that Lake Effect 
Distillery, LLC 723 Ludington Street 



 
Be and is  hereby granted an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption for the real 
property located in Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District No. 28 at 723 Ludington Street, 
described as LOTS 4, 5, 6, AND THE NORTH 67.5 FEET OF LOTS 7 AND 8 OF BLOCK 
40 OF THE ORIGINAL PLAT, City of Escanaba, Delta  County, Michigan,  

 
For a period of twelve years beginning December 30, 2023, and ending December 30, 2035. 
 

Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes:  
Nays: None 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

 

 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 1275 

"AN ORDINANCE TO MAKE APPROPRIATIONS AND CORRESPONDING REVENUES FOR 

THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024." 

THE CITY OF ESCANABA ORDAINS:   

The total number of mills of ad valorem property taxes to be levied for fiscal year 2023/2024 is 17.442. 

CHAPTER I 

Section 101.  That there is hereby appropriated by the City of Escanaba to various departments and funds for 

specific purposes, the several amounts set forth in the following tabulation, to be expended in accordance with 

the budget as approved, except that the City Manager is hereby empowered to transfer appropriations between 

activities and objects of expenditures, subject to the limitation imposed by Chapter VIII, Section 8, of the City 

Charter.  The appropriations and revenues set forth are for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024. 

GENERAL FUND 
Revenues: 

   Taxes $6,069,125 

   Licenses and Permits 21,250 

   Intergovernmental 1,829,500 

   Charges for Services/Fines  331,285 

   Electric Utility Fund Contribution  532,895 

 Transfer from Land Development Fund  60,000 

   Transfer from DDA Fund   2,500 

   Transfer from EDA RLF 495,000 

   Transfer from Farm Home     4,800 

   Transfer from Office Equipment Fund  39,200 

   Transfer from Sanitary Landfill Fund 280,000 

   Miscellaneous Revenues   218,530 

Subtotal    $9,884,085 

   Transfer from Fund Balance $0 

Total General Fund Revenues $9,884,085 

Expenditures: 

   City Council $31,082 

   City Manager 296,875 

   City Controller 461,202 

   City Clerk 187,866 

   Auditors 21,420 

   Information Technology  67,345 

   Board of Review   1,850 

   Treasurer 279,981 

   Billing 336,054 

   Assessor  252,324 

   Elections  26,425 

   City Hall and Grounds  81,252 

   Attorney 111,500 

   Human Resources 118,040 

   Insurance/Bonds   5,000 

   Public Safety 4,818,080 

   Community Preservation 153,380 

   Crossing Guards  47,697 

   Crosswalks   5,000 

   Sidewalks  14,825 

   Engineer  398,306 

   Street Lighting 170,000 

   Care of Trees and Shrubs 172,940 

   Solid Waste Collection 507,320 

   Sanitary Landfill 280,000 

   Composting Activities 94,815 

   Snow Plowing for Garbage Collection  19,720 

   Alley Maintenance  23,500 

   Celebration – Flags   5,370 

   Fourth of July   24,410 

   Zoning 117,775 

   Planning Commission   2,150 

   Promotional Community   7,950 

   Tourism Promotion  37,875 

   Parks 333,829 

   Community Services 18,648 

   Recreation 662,821 

   Boat Launches  16,375 

   Band  45,775 

   Transfer to Major Street Fund  14,246 

   Transfer to Local Street Fund 11,871 

Agenda Item: NB-1
Date: 05/18/2023



Ordinance No 1275 – cont. 

S:\Clerk\Ordinances\ord1275 Appropriations 2023-24.docx 2 

   Transfer to Parking Maintenance Fund       30,000 

   Transfer to Library Fund                                   461,325 

   Transfer to Electric Fund         26,309 

   Transfer to Wastewater Fund        30,928 

   Transfer to Water Fund         30,928 

   Transfer to Marina Fund          3,260 

   Transfer to Motor Vehicle Fund        36,665 

   Transfer to Escanaba Building Authority Fund             199,000 

      Sub-total                                   $11,101,309 

     Less: Overhead to Utilities                       1,342,629 

      Total General Fund Expenditures                      $9,758,680 

 

MAJOR STREET FUND 
Revenues: 

   State Shared Revenues                                   $1,452,000 

   State Grants               400,000 

   Interest Earnings          25,000 

   Contribution from General Fund        14,246  

    Sub-total            $1,891,246 

   Transfer from Fund Balance        729,388 

      Total Major Street Fund Revenues                       $2,620,634 

     

Expenditures: 

   Operating Expenses                                             $820,634 

   Street Construction                                      1,200,000 

   Transfer to Local Street Fund       600,000 

      Total Major Street Fund Expenditures            $2,620,634 

  

LOCAL STREET FUND 
Revenues: 

   State Shared Revenues                                  $500,000 

   Interest Earnings                                            5,000 

   Property Owner’s Share of SA         1,500 

   Transfer from General Fund         11,871 

   Transfer from Major Street Fund                            600,000 

   Sub-total            $1,118,371 

   Transfer from Fund Balance              0 

      Total Local Street Fund Revenues                   $1,118,371 

  

Expenditures: 

   Operating Expenses                                        $494,287 

   Street Construction                                    580,000 

      Total Local Street Fund Expenditures            $1,074,287 

  

LIBRARY FUND 
Revenues: 

   State Funding                                                  $25,824 

   Penal Fines Allocation                                      83,299 

   Fines and Fees                                              22,422 

   Interest Earnings                                                 0 

   Donations            4,931 

   Transfer from General Fund        461,325 

 Sub-Total              $597,801 

   Transfer from Fund Balance                                       0 

     Total Library Fund Revenues                                $597,801 

  

Expenditures: 

   Operating Expenditures                                    $579,357 

      Total Library Fund Expenditures                            $579,357 

  

BEZOLD TRUST FUND 
Revenues: 

   Interest Earnings                                          $3,000 

   Transfer from Fund Balance         17,000 

      Total Bezold Trust Fund Revenues                      $20,000 

  

Expenditures: 

   Qualifying Expenditures                                $20,000 

      Total Bezold Trust Fund Expenditures                 $20,000 

  

GAS RETIREMENT FUND 
Revenues: 

   Interest Earnings                                          $12,000 

 Total Gas Retirement Fund Revenues                          $12,000 

  

 



Ordinance No 1275 – cont. 

S:\Clerk\Ordinances\ord1275 Appropriations 2023-24.docx 3 

Expenditures: 

   Transfer to Grants Fund             $0 

     Total Gas Retirement Fund Expenditures                           $0 

  

SANITARY LANDFILL FUND 
Revenues: 

   Revenue from Sales                                    $320,000 

   Penalties on Collections                                     1,500 

   Interest Earnings                                              600 

 Sub-total              $322,100 

   Transfer from Fund Balance              0 

      Total Sanitary Landfill Fund Revenues         $322,100 

  

Expenditures: 

   Transfer to General Fund                                  $280,000 

   Administrative Expense                                         175 

   City Wide Clean-Up           4,000 

     Total Sanitary Landfill Fund Expenditures                  $284,175 

 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) FUND 
Revenues: 

   TIF Tax Collections                                       $306,000 

   State Reimbursement of Lost PPT         1,700 

Miscellaneous Revenues          3,000 

   Interest Earnings                                            4,000 

    Total DDA Fund Revenues                                    $314,700 

  

Expenditures: 

   Operating Expenditures                                       $314,700 

      Total DDA Fund Expenditures                               $314,700 

 

HOUSING REHABILITATION FUND 
Revenues: 

   Interest Earnings                                           $3,500 

      Total Housing Rehabilitation Fund Revenues                         $3,500 

  

Expenditures: 

   Administrative Expense                                             $575 

      Total Housing Rehabilitation Fund Expenditures               $575 

 

LAND DEVELOPMENT FUND 
Revenues: 

   Interest Earnings                                           15,000 

      Sub-Total               $15,000 

   Transfer from Fund Balance                       8,660 

      Total Land Development Fund Revenues                        $23,660 

 

Expenditures: 

   Property Improvements                                      $11,500 

   Insurance/Bonds             160 

   Professional Services         12,000 

   Transfer to General Fund         60,000 

      Total Land Development Fund Expenditures                    $83,660 

 

PARKING MAINTENANCE FUND 
Revenues: 

   D.D.A. Fund Contractual                                    $18,000 

   Transfer from General Fund         30,000 

  Total Parking Maintenance Fund Revenues                     $48,000 

 

Expenditures: 

   D.D.A. Lot Expenditures                                    $22,000 

   City Lot Expenditures         26,000 

     Total Parking Maintenance Fund Expenditures          $48,000 

  

E.D.A. REVOLVING LOAN FUND 
Revenues: 

   Interest Earnings                                           $0 

      Sub-Total               $0 

   Transfer from Fund Balance        495,000 

      Total E.D.A.R.L.F. Revenues                                $495,000 

 

Expenditures: 

   Transfer to General Fund                                           $495,000 

     Total E.D.A.R.L.F. Expenditures                         $495,000 

 



Ordinance No 1275 – cont. 

S:\Clerk\Ordinances\ord1275 Appropriations 2023-24.docx 4 

U.D.A.G. REVOLVING LOAN FUND 
Revenues: 

   Interest Earnings                                               $15,000 

      Sub-Total          $15,000 

   Transfer from Fund Balance              1,386,600 

  Total U.D.A.G.R.L.F. Revenues                                 $1,401,600 

  

Expenditures: 

   Administrative Costs                                        $1,600 

   Contribution to Grant Fund        100,000 

   Contribution to Motor Vehicle Fund            $1,300,000 

Total U.D.A.G.R.L.F. Expenditures                             $1,401,600 

  

FARMERS HOME GRANT FUND 
Revenues: 

   Interest Earnings                                               $0 

 Sub-Total               $0 

   Transfer from Fund Balance               4,800  

 Total Farmers Home Grant Fund Revenues                       $4,800 

  

Expenditures: 

   Contribution to General Fund        $4,800 

      Total Farmers Home Grant Fund Expenditures                   $4,800 

  

DRUG LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND 
Revenues: 

   Local Forfeiture Proceeds                                   $1,000 

   Interest Earnings                                              500 

Total Drug Law Enforcement Fund Revenues                     $1,500 

  

Expenditures: 

   City Expenditures                                           $1,000 

      Total Drug Law Enforcement Fund Expenditures                 $1,000 

  

BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT FUND 
Revenues: 

   TIF Tax Collections                                        $91,000 

   Interest Earnings                                              400 

     Total Brownfield Redevelopment Fund Revenues                $91,400 

 

Expenditures: 

   Developer Reimbursements                                   $91,000 

    Total Brownfield Redevelopment Fund Expenditures            $91,000 

 

OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUND 
Revenues: 

   Opioid Settlement Revenue                                   $2,500 

    Total Opioid Settlement Fund Revenues                     $2,500 

  

Expenditures: 

   Professional Services                                           $2,000 

      Total Opioid Settlement Fund Expenditures                 $2,000 

 

 

The following is provided for informational purposes only, as provided by Michigan 

P.A. 2 of 1968 

 

ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND 
Revenues: 

   Revenue from Sales                                    $14,185,767 

   Rents                                                       50,000 

   Miscellaneous          147,550 

   Interest Earnings                                          125,000 

   Transfer from General Fund         26,309 

Total Electric Fund Revenues                            $14,534,626 

  

Expenses: 

   Operating Expenses                                     $11,585,237 

   Depreciation                                               972,500 

   Overhead to General Fund                                   551,188 

   Contribution to General Fund                               532,895 

     Total Electric Fund Expenses                            $13,641,820 

 

 

 



Ordinance No 1275 – cont. 

S:\Clerk\Ordinances\ord1275 Appropriations 2023-24.docx 5 

WATER UTILITY FUND 
Revenues: 

   Revenue from Sales                                      $4,540,000 

   State Grant Revenue            1,000,000 

   Miscellaneous                78,000 

   Interest Earnings                                           50,000 

   Transfer from General Fund         30,828 

Total Water Fund Revenues                                $5,698,828 

  

Expenses: 

   Operating Expenses                                      $3,123,585 

   Depreciation                                               550,000 

   Overhead to General Fund                                   418,538 

   Bond Interest Expense                                      150,000 

     Total Water Fund Expenses                                $4,242,123 

  

WASTEWATER UTILITY FUND 
Revenues: 

   Revenue from Sales                                      $3,910,000 

   Miscellaneous           13,250 

   Interest Earnings                                            7,000 

   Transfer from General Fund         30,928 

  Total Wastewater Fund Revenues                    $3,961,178 

  

Expenses: 

   Operating Expenses                                       $1,934,948 

   Depreciation                                                    790,000 

   Overhead to General Fund                                        372,903 

   Bond Interest Expense                                      264,000 

     Total Wastewater Fund Expenses                           $3,361,851 

 

ESCANABA BUILDING AUTHORITY FUND 
Revenues: 

   Lease Payments-Transfer from General Fund                     $149,000 

   Rent Income-City Hall/Library       133,247 

   Interest Earnings                                              500 

   Transfer from General Fund         50,000 

Total Escanaba Building Authority Fund Revenues                 $332,747 

  

Expenses: 

   Operating Expenses                                             $219,720 

   Interest Expense                                             3,125 

   Depreciation Expense                                       160,000 

     Total Escanaba Building Authority Fund Expenses                 $382,845 

  

MARINA FUND 
Revenues: 

   Fees and Concessions                                           $252,600 

   Interest Earnings                                            1,000 

   Contribution from General Fund         3,260 

      Total Marina Fund Revenues                                      $256,860 

  

Expenses: 

   Operating Expenses                                             $223,680 

   Interest Expense                                             4,595 

   Depreciation                                                74,960 

     Total Marina Fund Expenses                                      $303,235 

 

 

APPROVED:       APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________     _________________________ 

Laura J. Genovich      Mark Ammel 

City Attorney       Mayor 

  

Date Approved:   (Month) (Date), 2023     ATTEST: 

Date Published:   (Month) (Date), 2023 

  

 _________________________ 

 Phil DeMay    

        City Clerk 

 

 
 



Ordinance No 1275 – cont. 

S:\Clerk\Ordinances\ord1275 Appropriations 2023-24.docx 6 

I hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of an Ordinance duly adopted by the 
City Council of the City of Escanaba, County of Delta, Michigan, at a Special Meeting held on the (Date) day 
of (Month), 2023, and was published in the Daily Press, a newspaper of general circulation in the City of 
Escanaba on (Month) (Date), 2023, and that said meeting was conducted and public notice of said meeting 
was given pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act, being Act 267, Public Acts of 
Michigan, 1976, and that the minutes of said meeting were kept and will be or have been made available as 
required by said Act. 
 

 

 _________________________  

        Phil DeMay  

 City Clerk 



ORDINANCE NO. 1276 

AN ORDINANCE TO LEVY SUCH TAXES AS MAY BE NECESSARY TO MEET 
APPROPRIATIONS MADE AND ALL SUMS REQUIRED BY LAW TO BE RAISED TO 
DEFRAY THE DEBTS, EXPENDITURES, AND LIABILITIES OF SAID CITY FOR THE 
FISCAL YEAR ENDING ON THE 30TH DAY OF JUNE 2024, AND REQUIRING AN 
AUTHORIZED LEVY ON THE JULY 2023, CITY TAX ROLL OF RETURNED UNPAID 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS, TOGETHER WITH SUCH PENALTIES THEREON AS IS 
PROVIDED BY THE CITY CHARTER. 

THE CITY OF ESCANABA ORDAINS: 

CHAPTER I 

Section 101. That there shall be raised by levying 17.442 mills upon all of the ad valorem  
taxable property in the City of Escanaba at the next general City or July, 2023, tax levy, 
the sum of Five Million, Seven Hundred Ninety-Nine Thousand Seventy-Three Dollars 
($5,799,073) for the purpose of defraying debts, expenditures, and liabilities of said City 
of Escanaba for the fiscal year ending on the 30th day of June, 2024, in accordance with 
the 2023 - 2024 Budget of said City as submitted by the Manager, as amended by the 
Council, and approved.   

Section 102.  That said sum of Five Million, Seven Hundred Ninety-Nine Thousand 
Seveny-Three Dollars ($5,799,073) for the payment of all of the foregoing debts, 
expenditures, and liabilities herein before mentioned be appropriated for the several funds 
of the City of Escanaba for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024, and that the same be 
forthwith certified by the Clerk of said City of Escanaba to the City Assessor of said City, 
and the same shall be levied and collected upon the taxable valuation of all taxable 
property within the said City of Escanaba in accordance with the provisions of the City 
Charter and the laws of the State of Michigan, for the levying and collection of taxes. 

Section 103.  That the Clerk of the City shall report on June 21, 2023, to the City Assessor 
the amounts of all the several delinquent special tax assessments becoming due prior to 
January 1, 2023, and returned unpaid by the City Treasurer on said date of June 21, 
2023, for all public improvements hereto before levied upon each, together with the name 
of the owner or occupant against whom such assessment was made, as contained in the 
special roll prepared therefore, and on file in the Office of the City Treasurer, and the City 
Assessor is hereby authorized and directed to levy and spread said sums so assessed, 
together with the penalties fixed by law, in the July, 2023, tax levy against persons and 
property charged therewith in such special assessment roll in accordance with the 
provisions of the City Charter of the City of Escanaba. 

CHAPTER II 

Section 201.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance is, 
for any reason held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this ordinance.  The City Council hereby declares that it would have 
passed this ordinance irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, 
sentences, clauses, and phrases thereof be declared unconstitutional. 

Section 202.  This ordinance shall be duly published as required by the Charter and shall 
be in full force and effect ten (10) days after the date of its publication. 

APPROVED:  APPROVED: 

___________________________ ___________________________ 
Laura Genovich Mark Ammel 
City Attorney Mayor 

Date Approved:  (Month) (Date), 2023 ATTEST: 
Date Published:  (Month) (Date), 2023 

__________________________ 
Phil DeMay 
City Clerk 

Agenda Item: NB-2
Date: 05/18/2023



Ordinance No. 1276 -continued 
 

 

 

- 2 - 

I hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of an Ordinance 
duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Escanaba, County of Delta, Michigan, at a 
Special Meeting held on the (Date) day of (Month), 2023, and was published in the Daily 
Press, a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Escanaba on (Month) (Date), 
2023, and that said meeting was conducted and public notice of said meeting was given 
pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act, being Act 267, Public Acts 
of Michigan, 1976, and that the minutes of said meeting were kept and will be or have 
been made available as required by said Act. 
 
 

__________________________ 
Phil DeMay 
City Clerk 



ORDINANCE NO. 1277 
ELECTRIC RATES 

AN ORDINANCE FIXING THE RATES TO BE CHARGED BY THE CITY OF 
ESCANABA FOR ELECTRIC ENERGY DEMAND AND AVAILABILITY OF SERVICE, 
TO BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT ON THE BILLINGS PROCESSED AFTER JUNE 
30, 2023, AND ALL BILLINGS THEREAFTER UNTIL FURTHER AMENDED BY THE 
COUNCIL. 

THE CITY OF ESCANABA ORDAINS: 

CHAPTER I 
RATES 

Section 50.01. General Purpose - Rate Classification: 

(A) Residential Energy Rate:

Applicable: To residential customers for all purposes except those otherwise 
specially rated. 

$0.10325 net per KWH used per meter per month 

(B) Commercial Energy Rate:

Applicable: To commercial customers for all purposes except those otherwise 
specially rated. 

$0.09659 net per KWH used per meter per month 

(C) Water Heating Energy Rate:

Applicable: To any customer for separately metered controlled water heating, 
subject to such wiring rules and regulations as are established by the 
utility. 

 $0.09861 net per KWH used per meter per month. 

(D) Electric Heat Rate:

Applicable: To all customers for such service when separately metered upon 
application and approval of permanently installed equipment; subject 
to such rules and regulations as are established by the utility.  When 
air conditioning is installed in an electrically heated area, it may be 
connected to the same meter for space conditioning purposes. 

 $0.10186 net per KWH per meter per month. 

Upon application, the total annual charge for this energy may be paid 
in the following manner: 

The estimated annual cost shall be divided into twelve (12) equal 
payments.  Starting in July of each year, these payments shall 
become due and payable on the date indicated on the monthly bill.  
The payment for June of each year shall include an adjustment to 
correct the estimated annual cost to the actual annual cost.  A three 
percent (3%) penalty charge will be made on all payments delinquent 
after date indicated on the bill. 

(E) Special Street Lighting Rates:

$0.12862 net per KWH for City street lighting.

(F) Temporary Service-Single Phase 120 or 240 volt: Temporary service will be supplied
to a customer upon written application and advance payment of $110.00.  Equipment
for such installation will be supplied by the City in consideration of this charge.  Other
temporary services will be supplied on a private, work order basis.

Agenda Item: NB-3
Date: 05/18/2023



Ordinance No. 1277 – continued 

Electric Rate Ordinance 

  

 2 
 

Energy used for such installations will be metered and billed under the commercial 
rate schedule.  The City reserves the right to determine the necessity for the type of 
installation and duration of temporary service. 
 
In no event will said temporary service be allowed to remain after such time as it is 
practical to install permanant service.  The City reserves the right to terminate said 
temporary service when, in their judgment, any provision herein is violated. 

 
(G) Multiple Use:  In the event that a single customer uses energy for more than one of 

the above uses with a different rate for each, the higher rate will be charged unless 
the wiring is separated for metering purposes to the satisfaction of the City. 

 

 
Section 50.02. Availability of Service Charge 
 
(A) To be added to the monthly billings for energy in Section 50.01.  The following 

Availability of Service charge which will also constitute a minimum billing if no energy 
is utilized.  This charge will be computed as follows: 

 
RESIDENTIAL 
 

City:  Intra-City $16.07 per meter per month. 
 
Suburban: Out-City $19.56 per meter per month. 

 
WATER HEATING 
 

City:  Intra-City, $4.28 per meter per month. 
 

Suburban: Out-City, $5.63 per meter per month. 
 
ELECTRIC HEAT 
 

City:  Intra-City, $5.90 per meter per month. 
 

Suburban: Out-City, $7.25 per meter per month. 
 
COMMERCIAL 
 

City:  Intra-City $16.62 per meter per month for a single-
phase meter, $39.66 per meter per month for a 
three-phase service. 

 
Suburban: Out-City $21.98 per meter per month for a single-phase service, 

$40.74 per meter per month for a three-phase service. 
 

LARGE POWER 
 

 $133.98 per meter per month. 
 
 
Section 50.022. State of Michigan P.A. 295, of Public Acts 2008, commonly referred to 

as the Clean, Renewable and Efficient Energy Act mandates the 
electric utility collect the following charges from each electric utility 
customer (Amended by PA 342; eff. 12/31/2021 this act has sunset): 

 
(A) Energy Optimization Plan.   
   
  Residential  $0.000000/kWh 
    
  Commercial  $0.00000/kWh 
 
  Large Power  $0.000000/kWh 
 



Ordinance No. 1277 – continued 

Electric Rate Ordinance 

  

 3 
 

(B)  Renewable Energy Plan.   
 
  Residential  $0.00/mo 
 
  Commercial  $0.00/mo 
 
  Large Power $0.00/mo 
 
  Streetlight  $0.00/mo 
 
  Unmetered  $0.00/mo 
 
 

Section 50.025. Meter Charges: 
 
(A)  A customer who installs a new electric service or upgrades an existing service that 

requires new instrument transformer metering must pay a meter charge prior to 
receipt of services.  Meter charges and specifications shall be established by the City 
Electric Utility Director and shall be adjusted as the cost of labor and material change.  
Customers are not permitted to remove meters at the end of their service contract. 

 
 
Section 50.03.  Special Standby Service Rates: 
 
(A) A standby or breakdown 60 cycle A. C. electric service will be furnished under this 

classification to any customer qualifying for the large power rate who desires to self-
produce all or part of the energy used in his operation. 
 
The City will install transformers, meters, and service connections at the customer's 
expense to deliver energy to the customer during periods when his generating 
equipment is wholly or partially out of use at the following rates and conditions. 

 
(B) Transformer KVA capacity, as used in these rates, shall be the sizes of the nearest 

standard rated transformers that will serve the customer's greatest use of electric 
energy, measured over a 15-minute period and called the yearly kilowatt peak 
demand for standby rate purposes. 

 
 
Section 50.04.   Standby Equipment Rate. 
 
(A) The charge for equipment installed for standby or breakdown service and not used 

shall be $3.00 per month for each KVA of transformer capacity determined by 
subtracting the monthly measured kilowatt peak demand of the partial energy used 
in any month from the KVA capacity as determined in Section 50.03 (B). 
 
All energy supplied to the customer shall be charged at the regular rates applicable 
to the service rendered. 

 
(B) The minimum charge shall be the demand charge created by use, if such use is 

applicable to the large power rate, plus a kilowatt hour charge determined by 
multiplying the month peak demand by 200 hours, the result being kilowatt hours at 
the regular rate. 

 
(C) The customer must agree to isolate the self-produced energy from the City's electrical 

distribution system.  Change-over to City distribution energy shall be accomplished 
through City approved double-throw switches furnished by the customer. The 
Electrical Department shall have the authority and access to inspect and seal or 
padlock the double-throw switch or switches to insure correct operation of the same. 

 
(D) Where the City has previously installed transformers, meters, and service 

connections, and where said equipment is not used, the charge for such equipment 
installed for standby or breakdown service shall be $2.67 per month for each KVA of 
transformer capacity determined by subtracting the monthly measured kilowatt peak 
demand of the partial energy used in any month from the KVA capacity as determined 
in Section 50.03 (B) of this ordinance. 



Ordinance No. 1277 – continued 

Electric Rate Ordinance 

  

 4 
 

Section 50.05.  Dusk to Dawn Rate: 
 
(A) Applicable: It is understood that the service request will be for a period of not less 

than one (1) year, and that said service will be installed only on 
existing utility facilities.  If a new pole is required, the customer will 
furnish the pole, and the City will install the pole.  The monthly charges 
for dusk to dawn lighting service will be: 

 
Urban or Rural 

 
           $12.00 per small lamp 

 
 $18.00 per large lamp 

 
(B) Use and Reservations 
 

The City will provide the necessary fixtures and apparatus and will replace lamps and 
keep this fixture properly maintained.  The City does, however, reserve the right to 
discontinue service to any location which shows an excessive amount of damage 
resulting from vandalism or neglect. 

 
 
Section 50.06. Large Power Rates: 
 

Applicable: To any customer desiring power and incidental lighting service for 
large power use who has a monthly demand of 100 KW or more, for 
at least six (6) months out of any rolling twelve (12) month period. 
Services meeting those conditions will be billed under the Large 
Power Rate.  The nature of such service is alternating current, 60 
Hertz, three-phase 208, 240 or 480 volts, and is metered on the 
primary side of the transformer. The City reserves the right to meter 
power on the secondary side of the transformer and in doing so will 
add two percent (2%) to the total energy and demand so used.  For 
the purposes of computing rates under this section, each individual 
meter will be calculated separately, and under no circumstances will 
meter readings be combined.   

    
$0.06374 net per KWH for all KWH used per meter per month 

 
Plus Demand Charges of: 

 
$10.71 net per KW used per meter per month 
 

Monthly maximum KW demand measured over an interval of fifteen (15) minutes. 
 
 
Section 50.07.   Connection Charge: 
 

For every new meter set at the customer's request, there shall be a charge of 
$10.00.  Any customers who receive shut-off notices which are not paid by the due 
date and require final notification will be billed a $25.00 notification fee.     
 
This charge shall not apply when meters are reset for rotation, for meters reset for 
high bill complaints unless said meters are found to be accurate within two percent 
(2%) of registration, and for meters reset for the convenience of the City (landlords, 
lessors, etc.). 

 
 
Section 50.08.   Reconnection Charge and Temporary Disconnects: 
 

The reconnection charge for seasonal service requested by any customer, such 
as summer cottages, seasonal businesses, or seasonal industries, shall be $30.00 
if the meter is reconnected at the same premises by the same user. The maximum 
charge per service for multiple metering, such as domestic service, house heating, 



Ordinance No. 1277 – continued 

Electric Rate Ordinance 

  

 5 
 

water heating or commercial, shall be $30.00. 
 
Reconnections for non-pay which do not require the Electric Department service 
truck and a two-man service crew, will be $50.00.  Reconnections for non-pay 
which do require the Electric Department service truck and a two-man service 
crew, will be $153.94 per hour for each hour the truck and crew are required. 
 
Non-pay reconnections outside of normal business hours will be billed for actual 
costs incurred, including labor and equipment. 
 
If an electric service is disconnected and remains inactive for 12 months or longer, 
the electric service shall require an inspection by the State electric inspector, at 
the customer’s expense, prior to restoring power. 
 

 
Section 50.09.   New Services, Service Upgrades, and Service Extensions 
 

For all new services and service upgrades, the customer, his agent, 
representative, contractor or developer shall pay for all materials including wire, 
conduit, meters, etc. required to install such service in compliance with all 
applicable codes.  Said materials will be charged at actual cost plus 15% overhead.  
The property owner at the time of the request shall bear responsibility for all such 
charges.  Transformers, conductors, and other materials shall remain the property 
of the Utility.  If an electric service is removed or abandoned, the equipment 
belonging to the Utility may be removed with no reimbursement to the customer. 
 
Transformers are sized by the Utility based on the size of the service at the time 
of installation.  The Utility monitors actual usage and may replace transformers to 
match actual load.  If transformers are replaced by the Utility at the Utility’s 
discretion, the customer shall not be reimbursed nor charged for the replacement 
transformer. 
 
Underground services or line extensions will only be done between May 1st and 
November 1st.  If a customer desires services or line extensions outside of this time 
frame, the customer will be responsible for providing a trench for such services or 
line extensions. 

 
 
Section 50.10.   Special Services 
 

In the event that a customer requires special services from the department, i.e. 
temporary relocation or metering or other components of a service, the standard 
charge shall be $153.94 per hour.  Whenever the actual cost of such services 
exceeds $153.94 per hour, the City reserves the right to charge the actual cost.    

 
The City Manager will set the charge for any service not covered by 
this ordinance. 

 
CHAPTER II 

 CONDITIONS OF SERVICE 
 
Section 50.20.     Late Payment Penalty: 
 

Meters of all customers shall be read or estimated monthly and a three percent 
(3%) penalty charge will be made on all bills unpaid after the date indicated on bill.  
The penalty charge will be computed as of date of payment and will be computed 
on the amount of payment applied to the delinquent balance.  The penalty charges 
may be waived at the discretion of the City for good reason, when the interest of 
the City would be best served by waiving said penalty, or if the customer proves 
that extraordinary circumstances intervened to prevent payment of the bill on the 
due date; in all cases, it will be the exclusive right of the City to determine the facts 
and judge the validity of the request to waive penalty payments. 

 
 



Ordinance No. 1277 – continued 

Electric Rate Ordinance 

  

 6 
 

Section 50.21.   Enforcement: 
 

In addition to all other lawful enforcement methods, the City agrees and covenants 
to enforce all charges for electric energy supplied to any premises, if any such 
charges shall remain unpaid past the due date. 

 
(A) Utility Liens 
 

Charges for electric services applied by the system shall constitute a lien on the 
premises served and if not paid within six (6) months, shall be certified by the 
official in charge of the collection thereof to the tax assessing officer and shall then 
be entered upon the next tax roll as a charge against such premises and shall be 
collected and the lien thereof enforced in the same manner as general City taxes 
against such premises are collected and the lien thereof enforced.  All provisions 
of the laws of Michigan and the City Charter applicable to the time and manner of 
certification and collection of delinquent City taxes levied against real estate in the 
City shall be observed in the certification and collection of such charges. 
 

(B)   Landlord Not Responsible 
  
In all cases where a tenant is responsible for the payment of any such charge and 
the Utility Billing Office is so notified in writing, which notification shall include a 
true copy of the lease of the affected premises, if there be one, then no such charge 
shall become a lien against such premises from and after the date of such notice.  
In the event of the filing of such notice and after the date of such notice, the City 
shall render no further service to such premises until a cash deposit in an amount 
of the projected billing for not less than a one-month period and not more than a 
three-month period is received, said determination of deposit to be solely at the 
discretion of the City. 

 
 
Section 50.22.   Restrictions: 
 
(A) Power Factor: 
  

The City shall not be obligated to furnish service to a customer using equipment 
having a power factor lower than eighty-five percent (85%), which equipment can 
be improved by reasonable changes to a minimum of eighty-five percent (85%) 
lagging.  Improvement of the power factor shall be at the customer's expense.  The 
City reserves the right to measure power factor at any time by means of test or 
permanently installed metering equipment, and if the customer's power factor is 
found to be less than eighty-five percent (85%) lagging, the billing demand will be 
increased by the ratio that eighty-five percent (85%) bears to the customer's actual 
power factor. 

 
(B) Discontinuation of Service: 

 
The City may discontinue service following written notice in case the meter or 
wiring on the customer’s premises is tampered with in any manner to allow 
unmetered current to be used.  The customer shall pay the City the estimated cost 
of the unmetered energy used as determined by the City, and shall, at his own 
expense, place the wiring in such condition and meter box in such place as is 
approved by the City.  The unauthorized connection to a utility power source or the 
bypassing of an electric meter will be construed as a theft of electricity and will be 
appropriately prosecuted.  The City may also discontinue service when an account 
remains unpaid past the due date.  The customer shall pay the full amount of 
arrears, plus a reconnect fee in order to restore service. 
 
Customers or Electrical Contractors shall not cut a meter seal to perform work 
without calling Escanaba Electric Department prior to beginning such work. Meter 
seals shall not be cut without prior approval except in the case of danger to life or 
property. In any case, permission will be given only to qualified persons to cut 
meter seals. Anyone not adhering to the meter seal-cutting paragraph in this 
ordinance shall be subject to a $150.00 seal-cutting fee.  



Ordinance No. 1277 – continued 

Electric Rate Ordinance 

  

 7 
 

(C)  Meter Location: 
 

All meters must be located in such manner as to provide safe, reasonable access 
by City personnel for reading, inspection and maintenance, without the need for 
advance notice during regular City business hours.  Conditions which can prevent 
access by City personnel include, but are not limited to, dogs, fences, locked gates, 
shrubbery, ice, snow, vehicles and debris in the way of the meter.  Any customer 
who refuses to remedy a condition which prevents access shall have his or her 
services disconnected until said condition is corrected to the satisfaction of the 
utility. 

 

New/Upgraded services:  The meter must be located on the side of the house that 
the service will be fed from, or on one of the adjoining sides.  The meter must not 
be located inside of a fenced area.  All new/upgraded residential underground 
services must have a meter pedestal.  Meter bases for underground services will 
not be allowed.  All new/upgraded residential overhead services must have a rigid 
steel mast with an attachment point high enough to provide necessary clearance 
for the utility’s wires.  Meters must be located 4-5 feet above grade, deck or walking 
surface. 

 
(D) Safety and Code Compliance: 
 

All wiring and electrical equipment must be installed, maintained, and operated in 
a safe manner so that it is not a hazard to life, health, or property.  If an existing 
electric service installation is deemed to be unsafe by the Electric Utility, the owner 
will be notified of the unsafe condition and will be given a sufficient amount of time 
to correct the unsafe condition. If the installation is not corrected within a 
reasonable amount of time as deemed by the Electric Utility, then the electric 
service will be disconnected until the problem(s) are corrected by the owner. 
Electric services that pose an immediate hazard to life, health, or property will be 
disconnected immediately upon discovery and the owner will be notified of the 
unsafe condition. If an electric service is temporarily disconnected for any reason 
and the electric service is deemed to be unsafe by the Electric Utility, the electric 
service will not be reconnected until the service has been repaired.  New and 
repaired electric services must conform to the National Electrical Code and City of 
Escanaba Electric Utility rules and policies. The State of Michigan Electrical 
Inspector must approve all new electric service installations and all repaired 
electrical service installations that require power to be disconnected to make such 
repairs before the new or existing electric services will be energized. 

 
(E) Owner Delinquency 

 
If a property owner has an account in his or her name and said account is 
delinquent or in arrears, then any transfers or name changes shall be prohibited 
until such time as the owner’s account is brought current and is otherwise in good 
standing.  This provision shall also apply to accounts held in the name of an 
owner’s agent or property manager. 
 
 

Section 50.23.   Experience - Good Faith Deposit Requirement: 
 

(A)  Deposit Terms 
 
If a customer of the City of Escanaba, whether he be a tenant, owner, or an owner 
by land contract, has a history of delinquent payments, or if the City has no history 
of customer's payments, or if owner or tenant customer service is located outside 
the corporate limits of the City of Escanaba, or if, in the judgment of the City, the 
existing deposit is insufficient based on current billings, the City may require a sum 
not to exceed the projected billing in an average four-month period as a good faith 
deposit. Projected billing for water, sewer and electricity are combined for 
purposes of determining a customer’s total deposit requirement.  In no case will a 
customer’s total deposit requirement be less than four hundred dollars ($400).  In 
the case of an account which does not include water service or wastewater service, 
the total deposit requirement shall not be less than two hundred dollars ($200).  



Ordinance No. 1277 – continued 

Electric Rate Ordinance 

  

 8 
 

This deposit will be held for twelve (12) consecutive months of payments without 
delinquency.   
 
Deposits for commercial accounts will be estimated on an individual basis.  
Commercial accounts will pay a deposit of an estimate of four (4) months' utility 
bills based on the estimated usage for the type of business.   
 

(B)  Deposit Interest 
 
Interest will be paid on deposits at the rate of 2.5% per annum effective July 1, 
2023.  The deposit rate is based on the market rate the City receives on its deposit 
accounts on that date.   
 

(C)  Escrow and Letter of Credit 
 
If a deposit of over $500 is demanded from a commercial or large power customer, 
this deposit may be held in a special escrow account at the bank of the customer's 
choice, and interest will accrue to the benefit of the customer.  Alternately, said 
customer may furnish an irrevocable bank letter of credit in lieu of a cash deposit.   

 
 
Section 50.24.   Qualification for Rate: 
 

A customer, once placed in a rate classification, will remain in this rate 
classification unless, in the City's opinion, another rate classification becomes 
more appropriate.  Customers desiring to change from one classification to another 
must notify the City in writing.  It shall not be the City's responsibility to determine 
the most economical rate classification unless and until said written notice is 
received. In the event a change in rate classification results in reduced charges, 
there will be no retroactive adjustments beyond afore-referenced date of 
application. 
 
In placing a customer in a rate classification, it is understood that such rate 
classification will remain in effect for said customer until, in the City's judgment, the 
rate classification is not applicable.  Short duration transfers between rate 
classifications by customers will not be permitted.  The City reserves the right of 
final determination as to when and whom a rate classification may be assigned or 
changed. 
 
New classifications may be authorized by the City Manager if, in the opinion of the 
City, these new classifications provide a benefit to both the City and its customers.  
Customers will be placed in these classifications only at the request of the 
customer.  These classifications will cease to exist at such time as a new rate 
ordinance is adopted, unless they are specifically included as a permanent rate 
classification under Section 50.01 and 50.02. 
 

 
Section 50.25.  Non-Sufficient Funds Charges (NSF) 

 
Whenever a customer presents a check or draft instrument for which funds are not 
immediately available upon presentation for deposit at the City’s bank, a charge of 
$40 will be placed upon the account for which payment was intended.  The NSF 
charge shall also apply to agreements for ACH account debits.   

 
 
Section 50.26.  Billing Recapture and Customer Credits 

 
Whenever it becomes necessary for the billing department to recapture unbilled 
charges, the billing department shall use a “look-back” of two years.  If it is 
determined that unbilled charges are the result of customer fraud, the billing 
department shall recover all unbilled charges. 
 
If a billing error on the part of the City results in over-billed charges, the City will 
refund all such over-billings, to the extent that the amount can be reasonably 



Ordinance No. 1277 – continued 

Electric Rate Ordinance 

  

 9 
 

determined. 
 
If an over-billing is not the result of a City error, the billing department shall employ 
a two year look-back period in determining the amount of credit.       

 
CHAPTER III 

 
Section 50.30.  Liability: 
 

In case the supply of electricity shall be interrupted or fail, the City shall not be 
liable for damages by reason of such failure. 

 
CHAPTER IV 

 
Section 50.40.   Other Ordinances: 
 
All rules, regulations, and provisions which have heretofore been enacted by ordinance 
or otherwise, shall continue to be in full force and effect until modified or amended. 
  

CHAPTER V 
 
Section 50.50.   Savings Clause: 
 
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance, is, for any 
reason, held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this ordinance.  The City Council hereby declares that it would have 
passed this ordinance and each section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase thereof, 
irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses 
and phrases be declared unconstitutional. 

 
CHAPTER VI 

 
Section 50.60.   Effective Date: 
 
In compliance with Section 4 of Chapter XVI of the City Charter, this ordinance shall be 
in full force and effect on bills for electric energy processed beginning July 1, 2023. 
 
 
APPROVED:      APPROVED: 
 
 
_____________________________  _______________________________ 
Laura Genovich     Mark Ammel 
City Attorney      Mayor 
 
Date Approved: (Month) (Day), 2023  Attest: 
Date Published: (Month) (Day), 2023    
 
         ______________________________ 
         Phil DeMay 
         City Clerk 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of an Ordinance 
duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Escanaba, County of Delta, Michigan, at a 
Special Meeting held on (Day) (Month) (Date), 2023, and was published in the Daily 
Press, a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Escanaba on (Month) (Date), 
2023, and that said meeting was conducted and public notice of said meeting was given 
pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act, being Act 267, Public Acts 
of Michigan, 1976, and that the minutes of said meeting were kept and will be or have 
been made available as required by said Act. 
 

__________________________ 
Phil DeMay 
City Clerk 



ORDINANCE NO. 1278 

WATER RATES 

THE ORDINANCE FIXING THE RATES TO BE CHARGED BY THE CITY OF 
ESCANABA FOR WATER DISTRIBUTION, TREATMENT, AND AVAILABILITY TO BE 
IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT ON THE BILLINGS PROCESSED AFTER JUNE 30, 
2023, AND ALL BILLINGS THEREAFTER UNTIL FURTHER AMENDED BY THE 
COUNCIL. 

THE CITY OF ESCANABA ORDAINS: 

CHAPTER I 
RATES 

For water distribution and treatment, there shall be charged by the City of Escanaba the 
rates herewith set forth as follows: 

Section 101. Metered Water Rates (Monthly): 

$6.05 Net Per Thousand Gallons  

Plus, a monthly availability charge based on the size of the customer's service to be 
determined as follows: 

5/8" & 3/4" Meter………………………………………….  $33.32  per month 
1" Meter……………………………………………….    41.64  per month 
1 1/4" Meter……………………………………………….    58.19  per month 
1 1/2" Meter……………………………………………….    83.23  per month 
2" Meter……………………………………………….  124.96  per month 
3" Meter……………………………………………….  249.74  per month 
4" Meter……………………………………………….  332.87  per month 
6" Meter……………………………………………….  749.13  per month 
8" Meter……………………………………………….1,082.39 per month 
10" Meter….……………………………………………1,498.16 per month 
12" Meter…………………………………………….....1,664.66 per month 

Minimum Bill:  The minimum monthly bill shall be the "availability" charge herein 
set forth. 

Irrigation Meters: Residential customers who have a secondary meter for non-
potable irrigation purposes will not be charged a meter fee for the 
irrigation meter.  Water usage will be charged at the rate listed 
above. 

Section 102.  Outside City Metered Water Rates: 

The outside City water rates shall be one and one-half times (1.5x) the inside City 
charge for availability and commodity fees. 

Section 103.  Construction Service: 

103.1  Use of City Hydrants or Standpipes as a Source of Water. 

• A deposit of $100.00 shall be required for each hydrant connection;

• Payment of $140.00 shall be made at time of application and will include the
initial installation and 1st month rental fee for both hydrant and backflow device;

• Relocation fee shall be $55.00 each time the meter is moved;

• Additional month meter rental shall be $55.00 per month;

• Additional month back flow device rental shall be $30.00 per month;

• All metered water shall be billed at $6.05/1,000 gallons.

103.2 When a service line is installed at construction site and it is 
not feasible to set a meter, the flat rate charge for water used 
will be as follows: 

1" Service Line . . .  $76.21 per month 

Agenda Item: NB-4
Date: 05/18/2023



Ordinance No. 1278 – continued 
Water Rate Ordinance 

 

 2 

103.3 Customers will be charged actual cost for construction 
of all services, regardless of size. 

 
Section 104.  Special Cases 

 
The City Manager will set the charge for any service not included in this 
action, including charges for meters which are damaged or faulty.  The City 
retains the right to discontinue service to a customer in order to bring the 
customer's installation up to City standards. 
 

Section 104.1.  Exemptions for Unintentional Water Loss 
 
Requests for special exemption for an unintentional water loss of metered 
water due to extenuating circumstances will be considered by the City 
Manager or his/her designee.  Approved exemptions will receive a 75% 
billing reduction for any usage over the normal monthly average usage of 
the account.  This reduction will be calculated for the 45-day period 
immediately preceding the corrective action to eliminate the unintentional 
loss. 

 
Section 105.  Unmetered Water Sales 
 

Unmetered water rates shall be charged at the rate of $6.05 per thousand 
gallons on the estimated usage for each month, plus, a minimum monthly 
service charge based upon an estimated meter size requirement, if the 
consumer were metered, which shall be levied from the metered water rate 
service charge schedule. 
 
The basis for estimating residential flat rate or unmetered water sales shall 
consist of a representative average residential usage for each month. 

 
Section 106.  Fire Protection Charges 
 

Charge per fire hydrant will be computed at $762.96 per year per hydrant.  
The annual availability charge for a special water line for a fire protection 
system shall be $762.96 for a six-inch line, $1,353.72 for an eight-inch line, 
$2,116.44 for a ten-inch line, $3,051.60 for a twelve-inch line, and $5,422.56 
for a sixteen-inch line.  Rates for hydrant rental in Wells Township will be 
$762.96 per year per hydrant. 

 
Section 107.  Connection To Public Water Supply 
 

(A) No person shall tap any water main or distribution pipe of the water 
distribution system, or insert therein any corporation cock, stop cock or 
any other fixture of appliance, or alter or disturb any service pipe, 
corporation stop, curb stop, gate valve, hydrant, water meter or any 
other attachment belonging to the water distribution system and 
attached thereto without the explicit and official permission of an 
authorized representative of the city.  No person shall install any water 
service pipe or connect of disconnect any such service pipe with or from 
the mains or distribution pipes of said water distribution system, nor with 
or from any other service pipe now or hereafter connected with said 
system, nor make any repairs, additions to, or alterations of any such 
service pipe, tap, stop cock or any other fixture of attachments 
connected with any such service pipe, without proper permit for same. 

 
(B) The owner, tenant or occupant of each lot or parcel of land which abuts 

upon a street or other public way containing a water main or a water 
system upon which lot or parcel a building shall have been, is or will be 
constructed for residential, commercial, or industrial use in the city shall 
connect such building with such water main and shall cease to use any 
other source of water supply for any purpose.  An exception shall be 
made for outdoor irrigation purposes. 

 
(C)  Any such owner, tenant or occupant of a lot or parcel of land in the city 

along a water main constructed prior to July 1, 2021, who has an 



Ordinance No. 1278 – continued 
Water Rate Ordinance 

 

 3 

existing domestic supply or source of potable water shall be exempt 
from the provision of this section.  However, when the existing water 
source for the parcel is insufficient or requires maintenance or upgrade, 
the owner, tenant, or occupant shall immediately connect to the city 
water system.  Buildings which are located more than 600 feet from the 
public water line are exempt from this article. 

 
(D)  Any such owner, tenant or occupant of a lot or parcel of land in the city 

who has an existing domestic supply or source of potable water who is 
exempted from the provisions of this section as provided in this section 
shall be subject to all fees normally charged for non-users of the public 
water system for fire protection services. 
 

(E) No well, spring, or other water supply shall be permitted for residential, 
commercial, or industrial usage when property is adjacent to public 
water system, with the exception for outdoor irrigation. 

 
(F) The owner, tenant or occupant of each lot or parcel of land which abuts 

upon a street or other public way containing a water main or a water 
system upon which lot or parcel a building shall have been constructed 
for residential, commercial or industrial use in the city who has an 
existing water system shall be required to connect to the public water 
system in the event the owner, tenant or occupant of any such lot shall 
cease to use the existing domestic supply or source of potable water or 
it requires maintenance. 

 
(G)  All costs and expense incident to the installation and connection of the 

water service line shall be borne by the owner.  The owner shall 
indemnify the city from any loss, damage or restoration costs that may 
be occasioned by the installation of the water service line. 

 
(H)  The materials of construction of a water service line and the methods 

to be used in excavation, placing of the pipe, testing, disinfection and 
backfilling the trench shall all conform to the requirement of the building 
code or applicable state department of environment quality rules, 
regulations, and engineering standards of the city.  All excavations 
required for the water service line shall be open trench work, unless 
otherwise approved by the city engineer.  No backfill shall be placed 
until the work has been inspected in accordance with this section. 

 
(I) Exceptions: 

 
1. Nothing contained in this article shall restrict the use of existing 

points, wells, springs, or other sources of water supply for outside 
irrigation use, provided there shall be no interconnection between 
such water supply and the city’s water system. 

 
2. The city council or its duly designated representative, acting 

pursuant to rules, regulations and guidelines adopted by the council, 
may grant exceptions to the requirements of this article based on 
unusual circumstances existing in a particular case. 

 
Section 107.1.  Service Transfers and Fees 

 
For each service transfer request, there shall be a charge of $10.00.  The 
transfer fee is limited to those situations which require only a meter reading.  
For any service calls during regular working hours, including meter sets and 
valve turning, there shall be a charge of $15.00.  These charges are 
applicable only to requests for turning on a service.  There are no charges 
for the shut-off of a service.  Charges for turning on a service outside of 
regular hours will be $120.00. 

 
Section 108.  Reconnection Charge 
 

The reconnection charge for seasonal service requested by any customer, 
such as people going away for the winter, seasonal businesses, or seasonal 



Ordinance No. 1278 – continued 
Water Rate Ordinance 

 

 4 

industries, shall be $30.00 if the meter is reconnected at the same premises 
by the same user within one year of disconnection.  Anu customers who 
receive shut-off notices which are not paid by the due date and require final 
notification will be billed a $25.00 notification fee.  There shall be a 
reconnection charge of $50.00 for shut offs due to nonpayment.  Non-pay 
reconnects outside of normal business hours shall be billed at $120.00. 
 

Section 109.  Meter Charges - New Construction 
 

A customer who installs a new water service that is not a replacement for 
an existing service must pay a one-time meter charge equal to the actual 
cost of the meter plus 15% prior to receipt of services.  Meter charges and 
specifications shall be established by the City Water Superintendent and 
shall be adjusted at his discretion.  Customers are not permitted to remove 
meters at the end of their service contract. 
 
A customer who requests replacement of an existing, properly functioning, 
meter shall be charged the actual cost of the new meter plus 15%, In 
addition, such customer shall pay materials at actual cost plus 15%. 

 
Section 110.   Non-Sufficient Funds Charges (NSF) 

 
Whenever a customer presents a check or draft instrument for which funds 
are not immediately available upon presentation for deposit at the City’s 
bank, a charge of $40 will be placed upon the account for which payment 
was intended.  The NSF charge shall also apply to agreements for ACH 
account debits.   
 

Section 111.   Billing Recapture and Customer Credits 
 
Whenever it becomes necessary for the billing department to recapture 
unbilled charges, the billing department shall use a “look-back” period of 
two years.  If it is determined that unbilled charges are the result of customer 
fraud, the billing department shall recover all unbilled charges. 
 
If a billing error on the part of the City results in over-billed charges, the City 
will refund all such over-billings, to the extent that the amount can be 
reasonably determined. 
 
If an over-billing is not the result of a City error, the billing department shall 
employ a two-year look-back period in determining the amount of credit.       
 

Section 112.  Frozen Meter Charge 
 
If a water meter freezes and becomes damaged as a result of freezing, the 
account holder shall be required to pay to the City, the actual replacement 
cost of the meter plus 15%.  
 

Section 113.  Cross Connections 
 

The city hereby adopts by reference the Water Supply Cross Connection 
Rules of the state department of environmental quality, being R 325.11401 
through R 325.11407 of the Michigan Administrative Code. 

 
It shall be the duty of the water utility to cause inspections to be made of all 
properties serviced by the public water supply where cross connections with 
the public water supply is deemed possible.  The frequency of inspections 
and re-inspections based on potential health hazards involved shall be as 
established by the water utility and as approved by the state department of 
environmental quality. 

 
1. The representative of the city water utility shall have the right to enter 

at any reasonable time any property served by a connection to the 
public water supply system of the city for the purpose of inspecting 
the piping system thereof for cross connections.  On request, the 
owner, lessees, or occupants of any property so served shall furnish 



Ordinance No. 1278 – continued 
Water Rate Ordinance 

 

 5 

to the inspection agency any pertinent information regarding the 
piping system on such property.  The refusal of such information or 
refusal of access, when requested, shall be deemed evidence of the 
presence of cross connections. 

 
2. The water utility is hereby authorized and directed to discontinue 

water service after reasonable notice to any property wherein any 
connection in violation of this article exists, and to take such other 
precautionary measures deemed necessary to eliminate any danger 
of contamination of the public water supply system.  Water service 
to such property shall not be restored until the cross connection has 
been eliminated in compliance with the provisions of this article.  The 
customer will continue to pay monthly meter fees and estimated 
usage of billing for water services. 

 
3.  Anyone performing a test of backflow or cross connection device 

must forward a copy of the test results to the City Water Department 
within 30 days of having completed said test.  A property owner shall 
have sole responsibility for compliance with this section.  A property 
owner shall be responsible for all investigation costs if such 
investigation results in a finding of “non-compliance”.  Failure to 
comply with this section shall be grounds for discontinuation of water 
service. 

 
 CHAPTER II 
 CONDITIONS OF SERVICE 
 
Section 201.  Late Payment Penalty  
 

Meters of all customers shall be read or estimated monthly and a three 
percent (3%) penalty charge will be made on all bills unpaid after the due 
date indicated on bill.  Penalty charges may be waived at the discretion of 
the City for good reason in all cases, it will be the exclusive right of the City 
to determine the facts and judge the validity of the request to waive the 
penalty payments. 

 
Section 202.  Enforcement 
 

In addition to all other lawful enforcement methods, the City agrees and 
covenants to enforce all charges for water supplied to any premises by 
discontinuing the water service to such premises if any such charges shall 
remain unpaid past the due date. 

 
(A) Utility Liens 
 

Charges for water services applied by the system shall constitute a lien on 
the premises served and if not paid within six (6) months, shall be certified 
by the official in charge of the collection thereof to the tax assessing officer 
and shall then be entered upon the next tax roll as a charge against such 
premises and shall be collected and the lien thereof enforced in the same 
manner as general City taxes against such premises are collected and the 
lien thereof enforced.  All provisions of the laws of Michigan and the City 
Charter applicable to the time and manner of certification and collection of 
delinquent City taxes levied against real estate in the City shall be observed 
in the certification and collection of such charges. 
 

(B)  Landlord Not Responsible 
  
In all cases where a tenant is responsible for the payment of any such 
charge and the Utility Billing Office is so notified in writing, which notification 
shall include a true copy of the lease of the affected premises, if there be 
one, then no such charge shall become a lien against such premises from 
and after the date of such notice.  In the event of the filing of such notice 
and after the date of such notice, the City shall render no further service to 
such premises until a cash deposit in an amount of the projected billing for 
not less than a one-month period and not more than a three-month period 



Ordinance No. 1278 – continued 
Water Rate Ordinance 

 

 6 

is received, said determination of deposit to be solely at the discretion of the 
City. 

 
Section 203.  Experience - Good Faith Deposit Requirement 

 
(A)  Deposit Terms 

 
If a customer of the City of Escanaba, whether he be a tenant, owner, or an 
owner by land contract, has a history of delinquent payments, or if the City 
has no history of customer's payments, or if owner or tenant customer 
service is located outside the corporate limits of the City of Escanaba, or if, 
in the judgment of the City, the existing deposit is insufficient based on 
current billings, the City may require a sum not to exceed the projected 
billing in an average four-month period as a good faith deposit.  Projected 
billing for water sewer and electricity are combined for purposes of 
determining a customer’s total deposit requirement.  In no case will a 
customer’s total deposit requirement be less than four hundred dollars 
($400).  In the case of an account which does not include electric service or 
wastewater service, the total deposit requirement shall not be less than two 
hundred dollars ($200).  This deposit will be held for twelve (12) consecutive 
months of payments without delinquency.   
 
Deposits for commercial accounts will be estimated on an individual basis.  
Commercial accounts will pay a deposit of an estimate of four (4) months' 
utility bills based on the estimated usage for the type of business.   
 

(B)  Deposit Interest 
 
Interest will be paid on deposits at the rate of 2.5% per annum effective July 
1, 2023.  The deposit rate is based on the market rate the City receives on 
its deposit accounts on that date.   
 

(C)  Escrow and Letter of Credit 
 
If a deposit of over $500 is demanded from a commercial or large power 
customer, this deposit may be held in a special escrow account at the bank 
of the customer's choice, and interest will accrue to the benefit of the 
customer.  Alternately, said customer may furnish an irrevocable bank letter 
of credit in lieu of a cash deposit.   

 
Section 204.  Discontinuation of Service 
 

Water services may be discontinued if the wastewater charges are not paid. 
 

Section 204.1 Tampering  
 

The City may discontinue service following a written notice in the event that 
the user has tampered with the metering, bypassed said metering, or cross 
connected to the City system.  Also, the unauthorized cross connection or 
tampering with the metering will result in the customer being billed for the 
estimated cost of the water used, as determined by the City, and the act of 
cross-connecting or bypassing the meter will be construed as a theft of utility 
water and appropriately prosecuted. 
 

Section 204.2 Seal Cutting (note: broke out into new section) 
 

Neither customers nor plumbing contractors shall cut a meter seal to 
perform work without calling the Escanaba Utility Billing Department prior to 
beginning such work.  Permission will be given only to qualified persons to 
cut meter seals.  Anyone not adhering to this provision shall be subject to a 
$75.00 seal-cutting fee.  

 
Section 205.  Liability 
 

In case the supply of water shall be interrupted or fail by reason of accident 
or causes beyond the control of the City, the City shall not be liable for 



Ordinance No. 1278 – continued 
Water Rate Ordinance 

 

 7 

damages by reason of such failure. 
 
Section 206.  Location of Meters 
 

All meters must be located in such manner as to provide safe, reasonable 
access by City personnel for reading, inspection and maintenance, without 
the need for advance notice during regular City business hours.  Conditions 
which can prevent access by City personnel include, but are not limited to, 
dogs, fences, locked gates, shrubbery, ice, snow, vehicles, and debris in 
the way of the meter.  Any customer who refuses to remedy a condition 
which prevents access shall have his or her services disconnected until said 
condition is corrected to the satisfaction of the utility. 
 

Section 207.  Backflow Device Testing 
 

Anyone performing a test of a backflow or cross connection device must 
forward a copy of the test results to the City Water Department within 30 
days of having completed said test.  A property owner shall have sole 
responsibility for compliance with this section.  A property owner shall be 
responsible for all investigation costs if such investigation results in a finding 
of “non-compliance.”  Failure to comply with this section shall be grounds 
for discontinuation of water service. 
 

CHAPTER III 
OTHER ORDINANCES 

 
All rules, regulations, and provisions, which have heretofore been enacted by ordinance 
or otherwise, shall continue to be in full force and effect unless modified or amended by 
the terms of this ordinance. 
 

CHAPTER IV 
SAVINGS CLAUSE 

 
If any section, subsection, clause, or phrase of this ordinance is, for any reason, held to 
be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of 
this ordinance.  The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance 
and each section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact 
that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, and phrases be declared 
unconstitutional. 

 
CHAPTER V 

EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
In compliance with Section 4 of Chapter XVI of the City Charter, this ordinance shall be 
in full force and effect for billings processed after June 30, 2023, and after passage of this 
ordinance and its publication. 
 
 
APPROVED:       APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Laura Genovich      Mark Ammel 
City Attorney       Mayor 
 
Date Approved:    (Month) (Date), 2023         Attest: 
Date Published:   (Month) (Date), 2023                                                           
       
         ______________________________ 

Phil DeMay 
City Clerk 

 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of an Ordinance 
duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Escanaba, County of Delta, Michigan, at a 
Special Meeting held on (Day) the (Date) day of (Month) 2023 , and was published in the 



Ordinance No. 1278 – continued 
Water Rate Ordinance 

 

 8 

Daily Press, a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Escanaba on (Day), (Month) 
(Date), 2023 , and that said meeting was conducted and public notice of said meeting 
was given pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act, being Act 267, 
Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, and that the minutes of said meeting were kept and will be 
or have been made available as required by said Act. 
 
 

__________________________ 
Phil DeMay 
City Clerk 



1 

ORDINANCE NO. 1279 
WASTEWATER RATES 

AN ORDINANCE FIXING THE CHARGES TO BE ASSESSED BY THE CITY OF 
ESCANABA FOR WASTEWATER COLLECTION AND TREATMENT AND THE 
AVAILABILITY OF SERVICE TO BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT ON THE BILLINGS 
PROCESSED AFTER JUNE 30, 2023, AND ALL BILLINGS THEREAFTER UNTIL 
FURTHER AMENDED BY THE CITY COUNCIL. 

THE CITY OF ESCANABA ORDAINS: 

Section 1.00 SEWER SERVICE CHARGES 

1.01 Charges for operation, maintenance, and replacement shall be levied monthly on 
the basis of metered water consumption, according to the following: 

$8.91 Net Per Thousand Gallons, plus monthly availability debt service charge 
based on the size of a customer's water service to be determined as follows: 

  5/8"&3/4" Meter  $21.10  per month 
1" Meter  26.15   per month 
1 1/4" Meter  36.78  per month 
1 1/2" Meter  52.73  per month 
2" Meter  78.90  per month 
3" Meter  157.99   per month 
4" Meter  210.67  per month 
6" Meter  473.94  per month 
8" Meter  684.57  per month 
10" Meter  947.90  per month 
12"   Meter    1,053.23   per month 

The minimum monthly bill shall be the "availability" charge herein set forth. 

1.02 Outside the City Wastewater Rates 

The outside City wastewater fees shall equal one and one-half times (1.5x) the 
inside City charge for availability and commodity fees. 

1.025 The flat rate charge for unmetered residential wastewater services shall be $64.57 
per month. 

1.03 In the event that a user introduces a substance into the wastewater system that 
results in extraordinary treatment, procedures, or costs, the City reserves the right 
to bill the user in accordance with the Michigan Department of Natural Resources 
(DNR) approved water charge system, or if the substance cannot be treated 
feasibly, the City reserves the right to terminate utility service to the user. 

1.04  In the event that a user introduces a substance into the system that results in 
damages to property or environment, said user will be solely responsible for 
compensatory and/or punitive damages. 

1.05 The City Manager will set the charge for any service not covered by this ordinance. 

1.06    Non-Sufficient Funds Charges (NSF) 

Whenever a customer presents a check or draft instrument for which funds are not 
immediately available upon presentation for deposit at the City’s bank, a charge of 
$40 will be placed upon the account for which payment was intended.  The NSF 
charge shall also apply to agreements for ACH account debits.   

1.07    Billing Recapture and Customer Credits 

Whenever it becomes necessary for the billing department to recapture unbilled 
charges, the billing department shall use a “look-back” period of two years.  If it is 
determined that unbilled charges are the result of customer fraud, the billing 
department shall recover all unbilled charges. 

Agenda Item: NB-5
Date: 05/18/2023



Ordinance No. 1279 - continued 
Wastewater Rate Ordinance   

 

 

 
2 

If a billing error on the part of the City results in over-billed charges, the City will 
refund all such over-billings, to the extent that the amount can be reasonably 
determined. 
 
If an over-billing is not the result of a City error, the billing department shall employ 
a two year look-back period in determining the amount of credit.  

 
Section 2.00   USER CHARGE SYSTEM 
 
2.01 Established Basis for Computations 
 
 Rates and charges for the use of the wastewater system of the City shall be based 

upon the methodology in the user charge system approved by the Michigan DNR.  
Revisions to the rates for total sewer service charges are to be established by 
ordinances as necessary to ensure sufficiency of revenues in meeting operation, 
maintenance, and replacement costs, as well as debt service. 

 
 User charges for operation, maintenance and replacement shall be subject to the 

annual review of the user charge system. User charges shall be the same for all 
customers of the system regardless of geographical boundaries. 

 
 BOD (Biochemical Oxygen Demand) will be charged $1.03 /lb, above 300 mg/l. 
 SS (Suspended Solids) will be charged $0.99 /lb, above 300 mg/l. 
 Phosphorus will be charged $ 27.36 /lb, above 12 mg/l. 
 
2.02 Amounts, Billings, Sewer Service Charges 
 
 The rates and charges for service furnished by such system shall be levied upon 

each lot or parcel of land, building or premises, having any sewer connection with 
such systems, on the basis of the equivalent residential units and shall be collected 
monthly, except in cases where the character of the sewage from a manufacturer 
is such that reasonable, additional burden is placed on the system. 

 
2.03 Annual Audit 
 
 The rates hereby fixed are estimated to be sufficient to provide for the expenses 

of operation, maintenance, and replacement of the system as are necessary to 
preserve the same in good repair and working order. 

 
 Such rates shall be fixed and revised from time to time as may be necessary to 

produce these amounts.  An annual audit shall be prepared.  Based on said audit, 
rates for sewage services shall be revised as necessary by the City to meet system 
expenses and to ensure that all user classes pay their proportionate share of 
operation, maintenance, and equipment replacement costs. 

 
2.04 Free Services 
 
 No free services shall be allowed for any user of the wastewater treatment works. 
 
 The customer will continue to pay monthly meter fees and estimated usage of 

billing for water services when disconnected for non-compliance issues. 
 
2.05 Late Payment Penalty  
 
 Meters of all customers shall be read or estimated monthly and a three percent 

(3%) penalty charge will be made on all bills unpaid after the due date indicated 
on bill.  Penalty charges may be waived at the discretion of the City for good 
reason.  In all cases, it will be the exclusive right of the City to determine the facts 
and judge the validity of the request to waive the penalty payments. 

 
2.06    Enforcement 
 
 In addition to all other lawful enforcement methods, the City agrees and covenants 

to enforce all charges for wastewater services supplied to any premises, if any 
such charges shall remain unpaid past the due date. 



Ordinance No. 1279 - continued 
Wastewater Rate Ordinance   

 

 

 
3 

2.07 Utility Liens 
 
 Charges for wastewater services applied by the system shall constitute a lien on 

the premises served and if not paid within six (6) months, shall be certified by the 
official in charge of the collection thereof to the tax assessing officer and shall then 
be entered upon the next tax roll as a charge against such premises and shall be 
collected and the lien thereof enforced in the same manner as general City taxes 
against such premises are collected and the lien thereof enforced.  All provisions 
of the laws of Michigan and the City Charter applicable to the time and manner of 
certification and collection of delinquent City taxes levied against real estate in the 
City shall be observed in the certification and collection of such charges. 

 
2.075  Landlord Not Responsible 
  
 In all cases where a tenant is responsible for the payment of any such charge and 

the Utility Billing Office is so notified in writing, which notification shall include a 
true copy of the lease of the affected premises, if there be one, then no such charge 
shall become a lien against such premises from and after the date of such notice.  
In the event of the filing of such notice and after the date of such notice, the City 
shall render no further service to such premises until a cash deposit in an amount 
of the projected billing for not less than a one-month period and not more than a 
three-month period is received, said determination of deposit to be solely at the 
discretion of the City. 

 
2.08   Experience - Good Faith Deposit Requirement 

 
(A)  Deposit Terms 

 
If a customer of the City of Escanaba, whether he be a tenant, owner, or an owner 
by land contract, has a history of delinquent payments, or if the City has no history 
of customer's payments, or if owner or tenant customer service is located outside 
the corporate limits of the City of Escanaba, or if, in the judgment of the City, the 
existing deposit is insufficient based on current billings, the City may require a sum 
not to exceed the projected billing in an average four-month period as a good faith 
deposit. Projected billing for water sewer and electricity are combined for purposes 
of determining a customer’s total deposit requirement.  In no case will a customer’s 
total deposit requirement be less than four hundred dollars ($400).  In the case of 
an account which does not include electric service or water service, the total 
deposit requirement shall not be less than two hundred dollars ($200).  This 
deposit will be held for twelve (12) consecutive months of payments without 
delinquency.   
 
Deposits for commercial accounts will be estimated on an individual basis.  
Commercial accounts will pay a deposit of an estimate of four (4) months' utility 
bills based on the estimated usage for the type of business.    
 
(B)  Deposit Interest 
 
Interest will be paid on deposits at the rate of 2.5% per annum effective July 1, 
2023.  The deposit rate is based on the market rate the City receives on its deposit 
accounts on that date.   
 
(C)  Escrow and Letter of Credit 
 
If a deposit of over $500 is demanded from a commercial or large power customer, 
this deposit may be held in a special escrow account at the bank of the customer's 
choice, and interest will accrue to the benefit of the customer.  Alternately, said 
customer may furnish an irrevocable bank letter of credit in lieu of a cash deposit.  

 
2.09 No user shall introduce any substance, including toxic matter, chemicals, or 

flammable liquids, or water derived from other than metered City sources, into the 
City sewer system without first receiving specific approval from the Superintendent 
of Wastewater. 

 
 



Ordinance No. 1279 - continued 
Wastewater Rate Ordinance   

 

 

 
4 

2.10 Water customers not introducing all of their usage into the sewer system may apply 
to the Utility Office for exemption from wastewater charges for the usage not 
introduced, by requesting the installation of a meter to determine, through the use 
of the meter, the purchased water that is not being introduced into the sewage 
system. 

 
2.11 Exemptions. 
 

Requests for special exemption for an unintentional water loss of metered 
water due to extenuating circumstances will be considered by the City 
Manager or his/her designee.  Approved exemptions will receive a 75% 
billing reduction for any usage (for water discharged to the sewer) or a 100% 
billing reduction (if proven that the water was not discharged to eh sewer) 
over the normal monthly average usage of the account.  This reduction will 
be calculated for the 45-day period immediately preceding the corrective 
action to eliminate the unintentional loss. 

 
Section 3.00  VALIDITY, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICT, LIABILITY 
 
3.01 The provisions of this article are severable, and if any of the provisions, words, 

phrases, clauses or terms, or the application thereof to any person, firm, or 
corporation, or to any circumstances, shall be held invalid, illegal, or 
unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision or findings 
shall not in any way affect the validity, legality, or constitutionality of any other 
provisions, word phrase, clause or term, and they shall continue in full force and 
effect. 

 
3.02 All rules, regulations, and provisions, which have heretofore been enacted by 

ordinance or otherwise, shall continue to be in full force and effect unless modified 
or amended by the terms of this ordinance. 

 
3.03   All laws and parts of laws, all ordinances, codes and regulations which are 

inconsistent with or in conflict with or repugnant to any provisions of this ordinance, 
shall be deemed not to apply; provided that nothing herein contained shall be 
construed to prevent the adoption and enforcement of law, ordinance, or regulation 
which is more restrictive or establishes a higher standard that those provided in 
this article. 

 
Section 4.0  EFFECTIVE DATE 
  
This ordinance shall be in full force and effect for billings processed after June 30, 2023, 
and after the passage of this Ordinance and publication. 
 
APPROVED:       APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Laura Genovich      Mark Ammel 
City Attorney       Mayor 
 
Date Approved: (Month) (Date), 2023   Attest: 
Date Published: (Month) (Date), 2023 
     
         ______________________________ 

Phil DeMay 
City Clerk 

 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of an Ordinance 
duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Escanaba, County of Delta, Michigan, at a 
Special Meeting held on (Day), the (Date) day of (Month), 2023 , and was published in 
the Daily Press, a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Escanaba on (Day), 
(Month) (Day), 2023, and that said meeting was conducted and public notice of said 
meeting was given pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act, being 
Act 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, and that the minutes of said meeting were kept 
and will be or have been made available as required by said Act. 



Ordinance No. 1279 - continued 
Wastewater Rate Ordinance   

 

 

 
5 

          
         ______________________________ 

Phil DeMay 
City Clerk 



ORDINANCE NO. 1280 
SOLID WASTE RATES 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 14, FIXING THE CHARGES TO 
BE ASSESSED BY THE CITY OF ESCANABA FOR SOLID WASTE, 
RECYCLING, YARD WASTE AND LITTERING, TO BE IN FULL FORCE 
AND EFFECT ON THE BILLINGS PROCESSED AFTER JUNE 30, 2023 
AND ALL BILLINGS THEREAFTER UNTIL FURTHER AMENDED BY THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
ESCANABA 

THE CITY OF ESCANABA ORDAINS: 

CHAPTER I 

Chapter 14, Section 3, Collection of Charges; Liens, of the Code of Ordinances shall 
be amended as follows: 

1. Each small garbage customer shall be charged the sum of Four Dollars and Seventy-
Five Cents ($4.75) per month for the collection and disposal of up to three (3) solid
waste carts of solid waste per week.

The City may, at its sole discretion, grant a small garbage exemption from solid waste
charges if all of the following conditions exist:  (a) a building or portion thereof must be
unoccupied for the entire billing period in question; (b) a building or portion thereof must
have either its electric or water service “shut off” for the entire billing period in question;
and (c) no refuse may be placed for pickup at the occupancy in question during the
billing period in question.  Retroactive exemption will not be granted.

2. Each large garbage customer shall be charged the sum of Nineteen Dollars ($19.00)
per month for the collection and disposal of four (4) or five (5) solid waste carts of solid
waste per week.

The City may, at its sole discretion, grant a large garbage exemption from solid waste
charges if the customer in question furnishes the billing department with evidence of
private collection.  Retroactive exemptions will not be granted.

3. Any customer who exceeds five (5) solid waste carts of solid waste per week will be
required to provide for the collection and disposal of their solid waste through other
methods.

4. Should the State of Michigan or any other duly authorized governmental agency
mandate any cost increases for the disposal of solid waste at the Delta Solid Waste
Management Landfill, these additional costs will be added to the rates as previously
described.

5. There is created and established a special fund to be known and designated as the
“Solid Waste Fund” into which all sums collected under this chapter shall be deposited
and kept by the City Treasurer and from which all expenses of the administration and
operation of this chapter shall be paid.

6. All solid waste collection service charges shall be paid to the City Treasurer.

7. A three (3%) percent penalty charge will be made on all bills unpaid after the date
indicated on the bill.  The penalty charge will be computed as of the date of payment
and will be computed on the amount of payment applied to the delinquent balance.
The penalty charges may be waived at the discretion of the city for good reason when
the interest of the city would be best served by waiving said penalty or if the customer
proves extraordinary circumstances intervened to prevent payment of the bill on the
due date. In all cases, it will be the exclusive right of the city to determine the facts and
judge the validity of the request to waive the penalty payments.

8. In addition to all other remedies for the collection of delinquent charges or billing
authorized by ordinances of the city pertaining to solid waste collection, the city shall
have the right to such liens and procedures as may be established for the collection of
solid waste utility charges as are now or hereafter authorized by the laws of the state.

Agenda Item: NB-6
Date: 05/18/2023



Ordinance No. 1280 – continued 
Solid Waste Ordinance  

 

 2 

Chapter 14, Section 4.  Enforcement, of the Code of Ordinances shall be amended as 
follows:   
 
Charges for solid waste disposal shall constitute a lien on the premises served and if not 
paid within six (6) months shall be certified by the official in charge of the collection thereof 
to the tax assessing officer, and shall then be entered upon the next tax roll as a charge 
against such premises and shall be collected and the lien thereof enforced in the same 
manner as general city taxes against such premises are collected and the lien thereof 
enforced.  All provisions of the laws of the state and the city charter applicable to the time 
and manner of certification and collection of delinquent city taxes levied against real 
estate in the city shall be observed in the certification and collection of such charges, 
provided, however, that in all cases where a tenant is responsible for the payment of any 
such charge and the utility billing office is so notified in writing, which notification shall 
include a true copy of the lease of the affected premises, if there be one, then no such 
charge shall become a lien against such premises from and after the date of such notice. 

 
CHAPTER II 

SAVINGS CLAUSE 
 
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of the within Ordinance is, for any 
reason, held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this Ordinance.  The City Council hereby declares that it would have 
passed this Ordinance, section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase thereof, 
irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or 
phrases be declared unconstitutional. 

 
 

CHAPTER III 
REPEALING CHAPTER 

 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are 
hereby repealed. 

 
CHAPTER IV 

EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect ten (10) days after its passage and 
publication. 
 
APPROVED:      APPROVED: 
 
___________________________  ___________________________ 
Laura Genovich     Mark Ammel 
City Attorney                                                       Mayor      

 
       Attest: 
Date Approved: (Month) (Date), 2023   
Date Published: (Month) (Date), 2023    
         ________________________ 

Phil DeMay 
City Clerk 

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of an Ordinance 
duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Escanaba, County of Delta, Michigan, at a 
Special Meeting held on (Day), the (Date) day of (Month) 2023, and was published in the 
Daily Press, a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Escanaba on (Day), (Month) 
(Date), 2023, and that said meeting was conducted and public notice of said meeting was 
given pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act, being Act 267, Public 
Acts of Michigan, 1976, and that the minutes of said meeting were kept and will be or 
have been made available as required by said Act. 

 
 
__________________________ 
Phil DeMay 
City Clerk 





















































MRAM,LLC 
912 Lake Shore Drive 
Escanaba,MI 49829 

April 3, 2023 

RE: 3110 5th A venue South residential lot for sale 

To: City Manager James McNeil, 

MRAM, LLC is requesting to purchase 1 city lot that is located at 3110 5th A venue South. 

The purpose is to build a 3 bedroom 2 bath slab on grade spec house. The City of Escanaba has 
a very limited supply of new housing. 

The offer is $20,000.00.

Melvin Stenberg 
President 





 
 
 
 
P.O. Box 948 • Escanaba, MI 49829-0948                                                              (906)786-9402 • fax (906) 786-4755 
 
 
 

Mission Statement: 

Enhancing the enjoyment and livability of our community by providing 
quality municipal services. 

The City of Escanaba is an equal opportunity employer and provider. 

 
 

James McNeil 
City of Escanaba 
410 Ludington Street 
Escanaba, MI 49829 
jmcneil@escanaba.org 
 
 
RE: 3110 5th Avenue South 
 
In addition to a private appraisal, the City of Escanaba conducts an internal appraisal when 
possible. The Assessor’s opinion of value for 3110 5th Avenue South is $20,500. 
 
The sales comparison approach was used to arrive at this value as numerous arm’s length 
comparable sales are available. The subject is standard sized for new construction with 90 feet 
of frontage and 132 feet of depth. It is located in a stable neighborhood. The site will require fill 
but is already equipped with a paved street and city-side water and sanitary sewer. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
James McNeil 
City Manager/City Assessor 
City of Escanaba 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

























 
Sale Price: $20,500 

 
Interior Lot 

 
Lot Size: 90’ X 132.35’ 

 
All utilities are in place. 

 
Sale is subject to an 18 month time of  

completion for construction. 
 

 

3110 5th Avenue South 

GENERAL  
INFORMATION 

 
Address: 
3110 5th Avenue South 
Escanaba, MI  49829 

 
County: 
Delta 

 
Property Type: 
Residential 

 
All Utilities: 
City of Escanaba 

 
Listing Contact: 
City of Escanaba 
410 Ludington Street 
PO Box 948 
Escanaba, MI  49829 
(906) 786-9402 

 
Current Zoning: 
A - Single Family 
















































	05.18.2023 - City Council Mtg - Regular
	cm05.04.2023
	PH-2
	MX-M363N_20230508_100709
	PH-2
	NB-1
	MX-M363N_20230426_121043
	Lake Effect Distillery OPRA budget

	NB-6
	Letter of Obsolesence 723 Ludington
	Lake Effect Distillery Record Cards


	Exemption Resolution Dist 28

	NB-1
	NB-2
	NB-3
	NB-4
	NB-5
	NB-6
	NB-7
	NB-7
	Parade Permit Application 2023

	NB-8_Redacted
	NB-9
	NB-9
	Revised- Purchase Request - 3110 5th Avenue South
	3110 5th Ave S Assessor Value
	3110 5th Ave S Appraisal
	3110_5th_avenue_south

	NB-10
	MX-M363N_20230511_082616

	NB-11
	NB-11
	MX-M363N_20230512_095910

	NB-12



